AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE

TAHOE TRUCKEE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

AND THE

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

JULY 1, 2017 to JUNE 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS		4
ARTICLE 1	AGREEMENT	5
ARTICLE 2	RECOGNITION	6
ARTICLE 3	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	6
ARTICLE 4	HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT	7
ARTICLE 5	TRANSFERS/REASSIGNMENTS	10
ARTICLE 6	SAFETY CONDITIONS	15
ARTICLE 7	EVALUATION	16
ARTICLE 8	P.A.R.	21
ARTICLE 9	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	29
ARTICLE 10	LEAVES	33
ARTICLE 11	CLASS SIZE	44
ARTICLE 12	HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS	45
ARTICLE 13	WAGES	47
ARTICLE 14	SAVINGS	58
ARTICLE 15	SCOPE OF BARGAINING	59
ARTICLE 16	SUMMER SCHOOL	60
<u>APPENDICES</u>		
APPENDIX A	CERTIFICATED EVALUATION FORMS	
APPENDIX B	SALARY SCHEDULES	
APPENDIX C	HEALTH & WELFARE PLAN SUMMARIES	
APPENDIX D	SCHOOL AND MINIMUM DAY CALENDAR	

PREAMBLE

This agreement is made and entered into May 1, 2019 by and between the Tahoe Truckee Unified School District, hereinafter referred to as the DISTRICT, and the Tahoe Truckee Education Association, an affiliate of the California Teachers Association and the National Education Association (CTA/NEA), hereinafter referred to as the ASSOCIATION.

This agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540 - 3549 of the Government Code of the State of California for a term prescribed herein.

DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise indicated, the following definitions shall apply to this Agreement.

- 1. A "unit member" or "bargaining unit member," shall mean any District certificated employee who is represented by the Tahoe Truckee Education Association as described in Article 2 of this Agreement.
- 2. "Office" shall mean the central administrative office of the District.
- 3. A "day" is a day in which the central administrative office of the District is open for business.
- 4. A "transfer" is defined as a movement, either voluntary or involuntary, of personnel from one school site to another school site. For purposes of this Article, North Tahoe High School and North Tahoe Middle School are separate school sites.
- 5. A "teacher exchange" is an exchange of positions between two teachers at different school sites which is agreed to by the teachers involved and the immediate supervisors. An exchange is not considered a transfer for the purpose of this Article and exchange positions need not be advertised by the District.
- 6. An "involuntary transfer" is a transfer of a District unit member without the unit member's consent.
- 7. A "reassignment" is the movement of a teacher from one subject area to another subject area or one grade level to another grade level at the same work location.
- 8. A "vacancy" is any vacated, promotional or newly created position.
- 9. "Daily Rate of Pay" means a unit member's base annual salary divided by the number of days he/she is required to work in a school year.
- 10. "School Site" or "Site" shall mean one of the District's elementary, middle, continuation, alternative or high schools unless otherwise indicated.
- 11. "Seniority" is defined as a unit member's first day of paid service in a probationary position.
 - 11.1 Ties among unit members who have the same seniority date, if not broken by application of the District's tie breaking criteria, shall be determined by lot.
 - 11.2 Determination by lot shall be conducted in the presence of at least two (2) Association representatives.

ARTICLE 1 AGREEMENT

- 1.1 This collective bargaining agreement ("Agreement") is between the Tahoe Truckee Unified School District, ("District"), and the Tahoe Truckee Education Association, an affiliate of CTA/NEA, ("Association" or "TTEA").
- 1.2 This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Educational Employment Relations Act, Government Code section 3540, et seq.
- 1.3 This Agreement shall be effective after it has been ratified by TTEA and approved by the District's Board of Trustees, and shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2020.
- 1.4 The Association and the District agree to reopen negotiations for the 2017-2018, 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 school years. Negotiations topics shall be limited to Health and Welfare Benefits (Article 12), Wages (Article 13), and two articles of each party's choice or if mutually accepted by both parties other articles may be opened. The parties shall exchange reopener contract proposals by September 30, each year.

Signatures are on file at the Tahoe Truckee Unified School District Office

Thomas LeFevers Lead Negotiator
Tahoe Truckee Education Association

Joan Zappettini Director of Human Resources
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District

ARTICLE 2 RECOGNITION

2.1 The District recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative of the District's certificated employees in the following positions:

Teacher
Counselor
Librarian
Nurse
Speech and Language Pathologist
Special Day Class Teacher
Resource Specialist Teacher
Teacher on Special Assignment ("TOSA")

2.2 Excluded from the unit represented by the exclusive representative are any employees not specifically included above, as well as management and confidential employees and employees of the classified service.

ARTICLE 3 ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- 3.1 The Association shall have the right of access at reasonable times to areas in which unit member's work, the right to use institutional bulletin boards, mailboxes, and other means of communication, subject to reasonable regulation, and the right to use institutional facilities at reasonable times for the purpose of meetings concerned with the exercise of the rights guaranteed by the Educational Employment Relations Act, Government Code section 3540 et seq.
- 3.2 The District shall place an item on the agenda of each regularly scheduled Board of Trustee's meeting for the purpose of giving authorized representatives of the Association an opportunity to make a report to the Board.
- Names, addresses and telephone numbers of all unit members shall be provided to the Association President upon request.
- 3.4 The District shall provide release time to unit members who are on the Association's negotiating team to "meet and negotiate" with the District as defined in Government Code section 3540.1(h) and for processing of grievances at no cost to the Association.
- 3.5 Any unit member who is a member of TTEA, or who has applied for membership, may sign and deliver to the District an assignment authorizing deduction of Association membership dues, initiation fees and general assessments in the Association. Pursuant to such authorization, the District shall deduct one tenth (1/10) of such dues from the unit member's salary each month for ten (10) months. Deductions for unit members who sign such authorization after the commencement of the school year shall be appropriately prorated to complete payments by the end of the school year.
- 3.6 The President of the Association or his/her representative may perform his/her duties as President of the Association during non-class time.
- 3.7 The District shall maintain a current copy of the collective bargaining agreement on the District's website.
- 3.8 Upon appropriate written authorization from a bargaining unit member, the District shall deduct from their salary and make appropriate remittance for annuities, credit union, savings bonds or any other plans or programs jointly approved by the Association and the District.
- 3.9 Unit members who are members of the Association and have authorized payroll deductions of their Associations dues and/or fees may have such fees deducted from their regular salary checks, on a prorated basis.
- 3.10 The District shall promptly remit service fees, Association dues and/or fees to the Association and provide the Association with an alphabetical list of the employees from whom deductions were taken. The District shall not impose discipline on any unit member because of refusal either to join or pay a fee to the Association.

ARTICLE 4 HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT

4.1 Teacher Instructional Day

- 4.1.1 Bargaining unit members are professional and will be adequately prepared for school each day. Instructional minutes per day shall not exceed two hundred eighty five (285) minutes averaged over a five day period for high school. Instructional minutes per day shall not exceed two hundred eighty (280) minutes averaged over a five (5) day period at the K-8 grade levels. High school and middle school teachers shall have a prep period equal to a class period each day averaged over a five day period. The use of the prep period time shall be determined by the teachers and shall not be assigned or directed activities by administration.
- 4.1.2 Teachers at grades 6-8 will have the option to implement ten (10) minimum days per school year for purposes of curriculum development and alignment, grade level meetings, and/or parent conferences. The purpose(s), length and configuration of these minimum days will be approved by the School Site Council.

4.2 On Site Hours

- 4.2.1 Teachers are required to be at their sites ten (10) minutes prior to the start of school.
- 4.2.2 Teachers will be available and on campus during their conference period for scheduled parent and student appointments. Teachers will not leave campus during their preparation (conference) periods to engage in non-school related activities.
- 4.2.3 Grade 9-12 teachers will sign up for two (2) non-paid extra-curricular duties. Additional assignments, which will be voluntary, will be compensated at \$25.00 an hour.
- 4.2.4 K-5 teachers may be assigned up to 25 hours of supervision; grade 6-7-8 teachers may be assigned up to 20 hours of supervision. This includes but is not limited to activities such as dances, games and other extra-curricular activities. Additional hours will be compensated at \$25.00 per hour. All temporary, probationary and tenured certificated teachers will be placed on the duty schedules.
- 4.2.5 Individual school sites or departments could use up to three hours a month beyond the instructional day (not to exceed 2 hours on any day) for professional development or collaboration in addition to the 6.5 hours (previously known as "buy back" see Article 4.5.1.2) of professional development activities distributed throughout the teacher work year. These professional development hours will be determined by the site principal or direct supervisor in consultation with the site leadership team members.
- 4.2.6 Except for a declared minimum day, the length of a period at the departmentalized schools will be no less than 45 minutes.

- 4.2.7 It is understood that a teacher's professional responsibility includes various committee assignments such as staff meetings, curriculum development, in- service, etc., and such annual school community events as: Back-to-School Night, Open House, and other traditional seasonal events. Professional responsibilities include preparation and assessments beyond the instructional day.
- 4.2.8 If in the reconfiguration of a school site, a grade level is incorporated into another school site, then that grade will be expected to adhere to a similar school schedule.

4.3 Enrichment

- Grades 1-3 190 minutes of enrichment over a 10-day period or 1140 minutes in a trimester period of time.
- Grades 4-5 350 minutes of enrichment over a 10-day period or 2100 minutes in a trimester period of time.
- 4.3.1 Enrichment may include but is not limited to P.E., Music, Art, Computers or programs determined by site staff or as provided through parcel tax or district funding.
- 4.3.2 Programs must be implemented in an equitable manner as determined by each staff. Teachers will be free from student responsibilities during enrichment periods requiring a certificated instructor as specified in Education Code.
- 4.4 Teacher assigned to teach a class or section in addition to full-time employment status
 - 4.4.1 In cases which a certificated teacher is not available to teach a needed section or class at a given site the District may elect to offer additional pay (see section 13-
 - 18) to a teacher who agrees to teach the additional class. Such a solution to a staffing problem will only be used in exceptional or emergency situations and this need will be communicated to site certificated personnel. Any assignment to teach such an extra class will require the mutual consent of both the teacher and the site administrator. Such an assignment may be for a full year or a pro-ration of a year.
 - 4.4.2 The site administrator may consider the following criteria when choosing a full-time teacher to teach an extra class or section:
 - 4.4.2.1 Credential
 - 4.4.2.2 Experience
 - 4.4.2.3 Prior evaluations
 - 4.4.2.4 Expertise
 - 4.4.2.5 Other assigned duties
 - 4.4.2.6 Schedule of classes

- 4.5 The following guidelines will govern the operation of the Professional Development and non-instructional contract day activities:
 - 4.5.1 Classroom teachers will participate in professional development activities within their calendar work year as follows:
 - 4.5.1.1 All classroom teachers whether full time or part time are obligated to participate in two professional development days per year in order to fulfill the terms of their annual employment contracts. Buyback hours will be made part of the annual teacher work year and be labeled hence forward as professional development.
 - 4.5.1.2Teachers will participate in 6.5 hours (see 4.2.5) of professional development distributed throughout the teacher work year. These professional development activities will be assigned by the site administrator or direct supervisor in consultation with site leadership team members.
 - 4.5.1.3Bargaining unit members will participate in 6.5 hours of grade-level, department, or job-alike collaboration, arranged by the unit member, distributed throughout the unit member work year. This professional development and/or preparation development of instructional units and materials as determined by the unit member and approved by the immediate supervisor.
 - 4.5.1.4 If a part-time bargaining unit member works only a half a year they will have the option, without pay to not participate in the professional development activities if said professional development activities are scheduled during the period they are not employed to work. If these members do not participate they become responsible for all content and follow up activities presented at these professional development workshops.
 - 4.5.1.5 Part-time bargaining unit members will receive a payroll adjustment such that the unit members are compensated at their per diem rate.
 - 4.5.2 Two release days per year are available upon request for professional development or collaboration as determined by the teacher and approved by the immediate supervisor.
 - 4.5.3 All bargaining unit members part-time or full time equivalent will be included in professional development.
 - 4.5.4 Bargaining unit members shall have all documentation supporting professional development days completed through May 15th on file with the Payroll Office no later than May 15th.
 - 4.5.4.1 In the event a bargaining unit members is scheduled to participate in a professional development day(s) later than May 15th but no later than June 30th, he/she is required to have an approved Plan for the day(s) on file with the Payroll Department no later than May 15th.
 - 4.5.5 If two work days prior to the first day of student attendance are scheduled, (other than professional development days), unit members will have individual preparation time use of one (1) of those two days.

ARTICLE 5 TRANSFERS/REASSIGNMENTS

5.1 Reassignment

- 5.1.1 The Association and all unit members at a given school site shall be notified electronically of a vacancy at that site within three (3) days prior to posting. Those unit members interested in filling the vacancy shall be given priority consideration before electronically posting within the District
- 5.1.2 Any unit member who wishes to be considered for a vacancy at their school site which might occur during the summer months must so indicate on the notice of intent form which is distributed annually, or submit a reassignment request in writing to the site administrator with a copy to the Human Resources Officer prior to the last day of school. This request shall be valid until withdrawn by the unit member. As vacancies occur in the District during the course of the summer, unit members who requested a reassignment shall be notified of vacancies via district email and may submit an application (attachments optional) through the District's online application system for reassignment to specific positions.
- 5.1.3 The site administrator shall meet with all applicants from within the site for vacancies, within the site, prior to any posting. Current members will be given priority consideration for any open positions.
- 5.1.4 When a reassignment is accepted or denied, the unit member shall be notified in writing within five (5) days of meeting with the site administrator. If the reassignment is denied, the unit member shall be given a written rationale for denial, upon request, within three (3) days after the issuance of the notice of the denial. A personal meeting with either the Human Resources Officer or the site administrator involved to discuss the rationale shall be held at the request of the unit member.

5.2 Voluntary Transfers

- 5.2.1 When the District determines that a vacancy exists during the course of the school year, the Human Resources Officer shall notify the Association and post electronically at all school sites, for in-house only applicants, a list of all vacancies which occur during the school year and for the following school year. The list shall contain the following:
 - 5.2.1.1 A closing date which is at least ten (10) days following the posting date.
 - 5.2.1.2 A job title and description.
 - 5.2.1.3 Credentials and qualifications necessary to meet the requirements of the position.
- 5.2.2 No assignment to fill the vacancy shall be made until the closing date.
- 5.2.3 Applications (attachments optional) for a vacancy must be submitted to the District's online application system, by members, during the ten (10) day posting period.

- 5.2.4 When the District determines that a vacancy exists during the summer, the Human Resources Officer or designee shall notify all members of the Association via e-mail and post electronically on the District's online application system for a period of ten (10) days, for inhouse only applicants, a list of all vacancies which occur during the summer. The list shall contain the following:
 - 5.2.4.1 A closing date which is at least ten (10) working days following the posting date
 - 5.2.4.2 A job title and description.
 - 5.2.4.3 Credentials and qualifications necessary to meet the requirements of the position.
- 5.2.5 As vacancies occur in the District during the course of the summer, unit members who requested a transfer shall be notified of vacancies via District email and may submit an application (attachments optional) through the District's online application system for transfers to specific positions.
- 5.2.6 Site Administrators shall meet with all applicants from within the District for vacancies within the site prior to any posting for external candidates. Current members will be given priority consideration for any open positions.
 - 5.2.6.1 When more than one in-District candidate applies for a vacancy, an interview panel will be convened at the site. A minimum of two teachers will participate, one of which will be from the department or grade level of the vacancy (if applicable/available). If there are no teachers available from that site, then teachers from another site will participate on the interview panel.
- 5.2.7 When a transfer request is accepted or denied, the unit member shall be notified in writing within five (5) days of meeting with the site administrator. If the transfer request is denied, the unit member shall be given a written rationale for denial. A unit member who is denied a transfer request shall be granted, upon written request, within three (3) days after the issuance of the notice of the denial, a personal meeting with the site administrator involved, to discuss the rationale. If further denied, the unit member may meet personally with the Human Resources Officer.

5.3 Involuntary Transfers

- 5.3.1 Involuntary transfers shall only occur for the following reasons:
 - 5.3.1.1 Declining enrollment (defined as a decrease in the number of students requiring a decrease in the number of teachers);
 - 5.3.1.2 Elimination of programs and/or funding; or
 - 5.3.1.3 The need for specific credential authorizations,
 - 5.3.1.4 Per Evaluation Improvement Plan

- 5.3.2 The Human Resources Officer shall seek volunteers at the particular school site prior to making any involuntary transfers.
- 5.3.3 Involuntary transfers of a unit member will be based on consideration of the following criteria:
 - 5.3.3.1 Least senior in an appropriate grade level(s)/subject matter;
 - 5.3.3.2 Areas of specific expertise/credentials;
 - 5.3.3.3 Least disruption to classes/schools; or
 - 5.3.3.4 Other overriding factors.
- 5.3.4 If the involuntary transfer involves a self-contained classroom teacher and occurs prior to the start of the school year, in addition to the factors listed above, district wide seniority at the affected school site will also be a factor.
- 5.3.5 If the Human Resources Officer or designee involuntarily transfers a unit member for reason(s) other than seniority, such reason(s) will be placed in writing and provided to the unit member and Association at the time of the transfer notification.
- 5.3.6 Written notice of involuntary transfer shall be given to the unit member at such time as the Principal or the Human Resources Officer or designee has made the decision to involuntary transfer that member. When transfers are administratively decided upon during the summer months, written notification of the transfer shall be given immediately to the unit member by email, regular mail or in person.
 - 5.3.6.1 The unit member shall be granted, upon request, within five (5) days after receipt of the involuntary transfer notice, a meeting with the Human Resources Officer or designee to discuss the rationale. An Association Representative may also be present.
 - 5.3.6.2 The affected unit member will not be evaluated as defined in Article 7 during the first year of an involuntary transfer unless evaluation is requested by the unit member. This does not apply to probationary or temporary unit members, nor is the intent to preclude observation and assistance.
 - 5.3.6.3 The District will not involuntarily transfer the affected unit member again for at least a period of two (2) years unless the program does not receive anticipated funding.
 - 5.3.6.4 If properly credentialed, the affected unit member will be given the first option to return to his/her previous classroom position or previous school site if such a vacancy exists or occurs within (4) years.
- 5.4 Transfers due to New Sites/Grade Reconfiguration/School Closures
 - 5.4.1 Initial Transfer and Placement

- 5.4.1.1 First and foremost, unit members of the affected grade level will move with their class or grade level to the new school or site.
- 5.4.1.2 Unit members affected by the transfer at the original school will have first choice for the same grade level at the new school.
- 5.4.1.3 If positions remain vacant, the principals will meet with their unit members at the grade level opening(s) in question to seek volunteers.
- 5.4.1.4 If vacancies still exist, volunteers from the remaining grade levels will be considered for transfer.
- 5.4.1.5 If vacancies still exist after seeking volunteers then the position will be involuntarily filled as follows:
 - 5.4.1.5.1 Unit members with the minimum total years of service in the district (based on the date of hire) will be transferred first.
 - 5.4.1.5.2 If the years of service are equal, then years at the grade level in the District will be considered. Unit members with the minimum years at the grade level will be transferred first.
 - 5.4.1.5.3 If ties occur, a lottery will be used to determine the unit member that will be transferred first.
 - 5.4.1.5.4 All unit members who are involuntarily transferred under this section will have first option to return to the grade level and site from which they came during the previous school year should a permanent opening occur for which the unit member is credentialed and qualified. In case of multiple applications, the involuntary process criteria above will take effect.

5.5 Compensation for Moves

- 5.5.1 If a reassignment (voluntary or involuntary) requires a classroom unit member to move from one teaching station to another within the same school, the unit member shall be entitled to two days of release time or compensation for the move at the non-academic extra duty rate, not to exceed two (2) days (6.5 hours per day), for work performed outside the instructional day to effectuate the reassignment. Release time and/or hours of compensation, or a combination of the two, shall be determined through consultation between the unit member and the site administrator.
- 5.5.2 If a transfer (voluntary or involuntary) requires a classroom unit member to move from one school site to another, the unit member shall be entitled to three (3) days of release time for classroom visitation and/or moving to the new school site, or compensated at the

non-academic extra duty rate, not to exceed three (3) days (6.5 hours per day), for work performed outside the instructional day to effectuate the transfers. Release time and/or hours of compensation, or combination of the two, shall be determined through consultation between the unit member and the site administrator.

5.6 Notification of Assignment

- 5.6.1 Each unit member shall be given next year's tentative assignment by the last day of school. Such notice shall specify the school site, grade level or subject area(s) to which the unit member will be assigned.
- 5.6.2 Any changes in assignment made after the last day of school shall be done after consultation with the unit member, which shall include the reasons for changing the assignment.

ARTICLE 6 SAFETY CONDITIONS

6.1 The safety and health of pupils and employees is of the utmost concern to the Board. To ensure that exposure to unsafe or unhealthy conditions are minimized, certificated employees will be encouraged to be safety conscious in their own actions and to report any unsafe or potentially unsafe or unhealthy conditions to their immediate supervisor.

ARTICLE 7 EVALUATION

7.1 Definitions

- 7.1.1 Visitation: Any unannounced visit and observation to a classroom or other instructional area.
- 7.1.2 Formal Observation: A prearranged, announced visit and observation for the purpose of evaluation, conducted at a time mutually agreed to between the evaluator and employee.
- 7.1.3 Evaluation: An evaluator's comprehensive written summative evaluation of the employee's overall performance.
- 7.1.4 Evaluator: The administrator designated by the District to evaluate the performance of a certificated employee.

7.2 Purpose and Frequency of Evaluation

The purposes of employee evaluation shall be to validate, strengthen and improve instruction. The evaluation process shall be directly related to the <u>District Evaluative Competencies</u>. Probationary employees shall be evaluated at least annually; tenured employees shall be evaluated every other year. However, tenured employees may be evaluated annually upon transfer to a new site or with a "Needs to Improve" or "Unsatisfactory" rating on the most recent Summative Evaluation Report.

7.3 Pre-Evaluation Orientation Procedures

No later than the end of the sixth full school week, the evaluator and the employee to be evaluated shall meet. At this time, the evaluator shall review the site level criteria for meeting the District Evaluation Competencies. Competencies which are not included in the Observation Report will also be discussed.

7.4 Visitation and Formal Observation

- 7.4.1 Each evaluator shall routinely conduct Visitations of certificated staff. Persons scheduled for Summative Evaluations will receive Formal observations as follows. If the evaluator has a concern regarding the visitation that may affect the Summative Evaluation Report, the evaluator will discuss the concern with the employee within five (5) days.
 - 7.4.1.1 Each probationary employee shall receive a minimum of two (2) formal Observations. At least one observation will be conducted prior to October 15th; a second observation will be conducted prior to January 31st.
 - 7.4.1.2 Each permanent employee scheduled for evaluation shall receive a minimum of one (1) Formal Observation, to be conducted prior to the Summative Evaluation and before March 1st.

- 7.4.1.3 Each Formal Observation shall be a minimum of forty-five (45) minutes in length.
- 7.4.2 A pre-observation conference shall be held a minimum of one day prior to the Formal Observation. At this conference, the evaluator and employee will review the lesson/activities to be observed and the employee will indicate in writing how the lesson/activities address the District Evaluative Competencies, using the Pre- Observation Form. At this time, the evaluator and employee will also review the following:
 - 7.4.2.1 Lesson plans
 - 7.4.2.2 Goals and objective(s) of the course(s)
 - 7.4.2.3 Objective(s) of the unit/lesson class and period to be observed
 - 7.4.2.4 Other elements mutually agreed to by both parties
- 7.4.3 A Post-Observation conference shall be held within five (5) working days of the Formal observation. This may be extended by mutual consent of the employee and evaluator. Within three (3) days following the conference, the evaluator will provide the employee with a written (hard copy upon request) post-observation record of the observation. The employee shall have the right to be accompanied by an Association or Support Team representative of his/her choosing at an observation conference.
 - 7.4.3.1 The employee may sign the post-observation record, signifying he/she has received and read the document, and has been provided the opportunity of attaching a written response, which shall be appended to the document. Such responses shall normally be presented to the evaluator within ten working days of the conference.
- 7.4.4 Additional Visits or Formal Observations may be conducted to gather additional pre-evaluation information. If additional Formal Observations occur, the above procedures governing Formal Observations will be followed.

7.5 Summative Evaluation Report

- 7.5.1 All probationary employees shall receive a Summative Evaluation Report no later than March 1st. All permanent employees scheduled for evaluation shall receive a Summative Evaluation Report no later than thirty days prior to the last instructional day of the school year. The Summative Evaluation Report shall be prepared on a form jointly approved by the District and the Association. A hard copy of the signed Summative Evaluation Report shall be printed, dated, and may be signed in ink by both parties to serve as the official document.
 - 7.5.1.1 The employee may sign the hard copy of the Summative Evaluation Report, signifying that he/she has received and read the document, and has been provided the opportunity of attaching a written response, which shall be appended to the document. Such responses shall normally be presented to the evaluator within ten (10) working days of the presentation of the Report.

7.5.1.2 The hard copy and all attachments of the Summative Evaluation Report shall become part of the employee's permanent personnel record.

7.6 Unit Members Hired for Less Than a Full Year

- 7.6.1 Employees hired after the start of the school year, who will serve 75% or more of the school year, will be evaluated. Evaluation timelines and/or procedures will be adjusted accordingly, in consultation with the District, unit member and Association, to meet evaluation outcomes and support the employee in achieving District Evaluation Competencies. The first formal observation (as defined by Article 7.4) will be completed as soon as possible and before the winter break (E.C. 44908).
- 7.6.2 Employees hired for less than 75% of a full year will receive a minimum of one observation with written feedback to help support the employee in achieving the District Evaluation Competencies for the following year.

7.7 Employee Improvement Plan

- 7.7.1 An employee receiving one or more "needs improvement" rating(s) in a District Evaluation Competency will be directed to participate in an Employee Improvement Plan. The employee's participation will be coordinated by the evaluator and shall include an outline containing specific goals for improvement.
 - 7.7.1.1The Employee Improvement Plan for employees who receive one or more "needs improvement" rating(s) may include:
 - 7.7.1.1.1 Assistance from other certificated staff
 - 7.7.1.1.2 Release time to visit another classroom(s)
 - 7.7.1.1.3 Workshop and/or course participation if requested by the employee.
- 7.7.2 An Employee receiving one or more "unsatisfactory" rating(s) in a District Evaluation Competency will be directed to participate in an Employee Improvement Plan. The Employee Improvement Plan for employees who receive one or more "unsatisfactory" rating(s) may include the items listed in Article 7.7.1.1 above as well as additional assistance and directives. The Employee Improvement Plan shall be reasonable, related to the cause of the "unsatisfactory" rating(s),, provided in written format, and reviewed with the employee. If the employee does not believe that the Employee Improvement Plan is appropriate, he/she may request that a conference, including the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer and TTEA President, or his/her designee, be held to review the recommended Employee Improvement Plan. This group shall also include the employee and evaluating administrator. The final decision shall be made by the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer.
 - 7.7.2.1 The Employee Improvement Plan shall not create a financial hardship for the employee. The district will provide for release time, when included in the Employment Improvement Plan and shall reimburse the employee, or pay for, when more

convenient, for in-service and professional development activities. College and university course fees will be paid by the district only if the employee does not use the earned credits for application to the district salary schedule.

7.7.2.2 The recommended Employee Improvement Plan shall not extend beyond the remainder of the school year during which the "unsatisfactory" rating(s) was received and the following school year. The evaluator shall meet with the employee up to two (2) times a month to review and assess progress and accomplishment towards a satisfactory evaluation.

7.7.2.3 If the recommendation includes peer participation, the relationship between the participating teacher and his/her peer shall be confidential.

7.7.3 Formative Evaluation Opportunity (Professional Excellence Plan)

The District and the Association support the development of an alternative to the basic evaluation system contained within this Article and agree to have developed this alternative during the 1996-97 instructional year. This program will ultimately be available to select employees who have proven mastery of the EVALUATIVE COMPETENCIES by receiving consistent ratings at the "Exceeds Standards" level. As this program is developed, it will be field tested at a site(s) based upon administrator and staff interest. Any deviations from the basic evaluation program as outlined in this Article will be discussed with the District Evaluation Committee and implemented after concurrence is obtained from the District and the Association.

7.8 Confidentiality

The evaluator will assure that the preparation of evaluation documents is completed in a confidential manner.

Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning

- 1.1. Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning
- 1.2. Connecting learning to students' prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences, and interests
- 1.3. Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts
- 1.4. Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students' diverse learning needs
- 1.5. Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection
- 1.6. Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching

Understanding and Organizing Student Matter for Student Learning

- 3.1. Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks
- 3.2. Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of subject matter
- 3.3. Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter
- 3.4. Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter
- 3.5. Using and adapting resources, technologies, and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials, to make subject matter accessible to all students
- 3.6. Addressing the needs of English learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content

Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning

- 2.1. Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community where each student is treated fairly and respectfully
- 2.2. Creating physical or virtual learning environment that promote student learning, reflect diversity, and encourage constructive and productive interactions among students
- 2.3. Establishing and maintaining learning environment that are physically, intellectually, and emotionally safe
- 2.4. Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students
- 2.5. Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior
- 2.6. Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior to ensure a climate in which all students can learn
- 2.7. Using instructional time to optimize learning

Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences for All Students

- 4.1. Using knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background, and individual development to plan instruction
- 4.2. Establishing and articulating goals for student learning
- 4.3. Developing and sequencing long-term and short- term instructional plans to support student learning
- 4.4. Planning instruction that incorporate appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students
- 4.5. Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students

Assessing Students for Learning

- 5.1. Applying knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments
- 5.2. Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction
- 5.3. Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning
- 5.4. Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan different, and modify instruction
- 5.5. Involving all students in self-assessment, goal setting, and monitoring progress
- 5.6. Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning
- 5.7. Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and their families

Developing as a Professional Educator

- 6.1. Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning
- 6.2. Establishing professional goals and engaging in continuous purposeful professional growth and development
- 6.3. Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support teacher and student learning
- 6.4. Working with families to support student learning
- 6.5. Engaging local communities in support of instructional program
- 6.6. Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students
- 6.7. Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct

ARTICLE 8 PEER ASSISTANCE AND REVIEW

8.1 Purpose

- 8.1.1 The purpose of PAR is to provide assistance to permanent and beginning teachers who have responsibility for a classroom, including Resource Specialists, in the areas of subject matter knowledge, teaching strategies, and teaching methods.
- 8.1.2 Based on available funding and resources, PAR services will be offered to teachers in the following order of priority:
 - 1st Permanent teachers who receive an "unsatisfactory" evaluation that fits within the parameters of the PAR Program (See 2.a.)
 - 2nd Newly credentialed first or second year teachers eligible for the BTSA Program
 - 3rd Referred teachers receiving a "Need Improvement" on their evaluations. 4th Permanent teachers who volunteer for peer assistance.
 - 5th Probationary teachers not eligible for BTSA who volunteer for peer assistance.
 - 6th Staff Development for individual or group of teachers 7th

Curriculum Development

- 8.2 Mandatory Participation for Permanent Teachers
 - 8.2.1 Any evaluation performed pursuant to this article, which contains one or more ratings of "unsatisfactory", or a continued "needs improvement" in area 1, 2, 3 or 4 of an employee's performance evaluation requires that the certificated employee shall participate in the Peer Assistance and Review Program. Teachers with one "needs improvement" will be encouraged, but not mandated to participate in the program.
 - 8.2.2 The governing board of each school district shall evaluate and assess certificated employee performance as it reasonably relates to:
 - 8.2.2.1 The progress of pupils toward the District's adopted academic content standards, which shall not include the use of publishers' norms established by standardized tests.
 - 8.2.2.2 The instructional techniques and strategies used by the employee.
 - 8.2.2.3 The employee's adherence to District-adopted curricular objectives.
 - 8.2.2.4 The establishment and maintenance of a suitable learning environment, within the scope of the employee's responsibilities.

- 8.2.3 Assistance and remedial efforts and activities shall be sustained and multifaceted, and shall be preceded by a conference in the spring of the year when the teacher receives the unsatisfactory evaluation. The conference shall involve the teacher being referred, the evaluator, and, if chosen, the Consulting Teacher. If the participating teacher requests it, the Association shall provide representation in the meeting.
- 8.2.4 Initial assistance shall focus on the specific areas recommended for improvement by the participating teacher's evaluator based upon the "unsatisfactory" rating or ratings in the performance evaluation that resulted in referral to the PAR Program.
- 8.2.5 Performance goals, as included in an Employee Improvement Plan per Article 7.6, for an individual teacher shall be in writing, clearly stated, aligned with pupil learning, and consistent with Section 44662 of the Education Code.
- 8.2.6 Assistance and review shall include multiple observations of a teacher during periods of classroom instruction.
- 8.2.7 The school district shall provide staff development activities to assist a teacher to improve his or her teaching skills and knowledge.
- 8.2.8 The program shall expect and strongly encourage a collaborative relationship between the Consulting Teacher and the evaluator with respect to the process of peer assistance and review. Communication and consultation between the participating teacher and the evaluator shall be ongoing.
- 8.2.9 The Assistance Plan for the participating teacher shall have a monitoring component with a written record.
- 8.2.10 The teacher and evaluator shall each be entitled to review all reports generated by the Consulting Teacher prior to submission to the PAR/BTSA Panel and to have affixed thereto his or her comments. The teacher and evaluator will receive copies of all such reports at least five working days prior to any such meeting.
- 8.2.11 The Consulting Teacher shall submit a final written report regarding the teacher's participation in PAR to the PAR/BTSA Panel and to the teacher's evaluator no later than April 15th. This report shall describe the measures of assistance provided to the teacher and describe the results of the assistance in the area or areas recommended for improvement.
- 8.2.12 The final report of a teacher's participation in the program shall be made available for placement in the personnel file of the teacher receiving assistance. If it is included in the personnel file, the teacher shall have the opportunity to attach comments.
- 8.2.13 Results of an employee's participation in the Peer Assistance and Review Program for

- Teachers established by Article 4.5 (commencing with Sec. 44500) shall be made available as part of the Peer Assistance and Review Process.
- 8.2.14 Nothing in the section shall be construed as in any way limiting the authority of school district governing board to develop and adopt additional evaluation and assessment guidelines or criteria.
- 8.2.15 Nothing herein shall modify or affect the District's right to issue notices of unsatisfactory performance and/or unprofessional conduct pursuant to Education Code Section 44938.
- 8.2.16 Nothing in this article precludes the principal/evaluator or District from doing formal or informal observations nor from notifying the teacher verbally and/or in writing regarding incidents or events related to the teacher's fulfillment of his or her professional obligations.
- 8.2.17 The permanent teacher shall have a right to be represented by the Association in any meetings of the PAR/BTSA Panel to which he or she is called, and shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present his or her point of view concerning any report being made.
- 8.2.18 A teacher or an evaluator shall have the right to present reasons to the Panel why a specific Consulting Teacher should be replaced.
- 8.2.19 A participating teacher shall not have access to the grievance process to challenge the content of reports, or decisions by the PAR/BTSA Panel, but may file responses, which shall become part of the official record of the Assistance Plan.
- 8.2.20 The PAR Program in no manner diminishes the legal and contractual rights of bargaining unit members
- 8.2.21 The parties understand that every possible subject matter competency may not be available within the corps of Consulting Teachers, and it shall occasionally be necessary to secure additional assistance to fully address identified deficiencies. In such cases, the Consulting Teacher shall maintain primary responsibility for the Assistance Plan, but may function more like a case carrier who assures the availability of appropriate resources.
- 8.2.22 Nothing herein shall preclude the Board from examining information, which it is entitled by law to review in connection with the evaluation of and/or decision to retain in employment, probationary or temporary certificated employees.

8.3 New Unit Members Employees

- 8.3.1 All Members new to the district will be provided a mentor teacher, who will meet with the teacher for up to one hour per week.
 - 8.3.1.1 New members will have input on the selection of their mentors, with the approval of administration. Should a member and mentor be deemed "not a good match", a new mentor will be provided with mutual agreement between the new teacher,

- new mentor and immediate supervisor.
- 8.3.1.2 Mentors of new members may submit a timesheet for up to one hour per week for the duration of the school year. The rate will be \$40.00 per hour.

8.4 Participation of Beginning Teachers Eligible for BTSA

- 8.4.1 It is expected that all eligible first and second year teachers will take part in the Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment Program.
- 8.4.2 Teachers involved with the BTSA program will be eligible to earn college or university units, if available, based upon the additional time that they are required to put in to participate in the BTSA program.
- 8.4.3 The BTSA program is a two-year commitment.
- 8.4.4 All communication and documentation between the beginning teacher and the Consulting Teacher or support provider will be strictly confidential and only a record of participation will be forwarded to the PAR/BTSA Panel

8.5 Referred Teachers

- 8.5.1 Teachers receiving a "needs improvement" on his/her evaluation may be referred to the PAR/BTSA Panel for participation in the Peer Assistance program.
- 8.5.2 The evaluator will meet with the teacher to explain the referral.
- 8.5.3 If the teacher volunteers to participate, a Consulting Teacher will be assigned.

8.6 Voluntary Participation of Permanent Teachers

- 8.6.1 Permanent teachers desiring assistance in improving their practice may apply to the PAR Panel for such assistance on a confidential basis.
- 8.6.2 The volunteer and Consulting Teacher will meet to determine the needs of the volunteering teacher as specifically as possible and will jointly develop an Assistance Plan.
- 8.6.3 Consulting Teachers shall provide oral and written feedback to the volunteer teacher. All communication shall be confidential.
- 8.6.4 The volunteer teacher may terminate participation in the program at any time, through written notice to the Panel.
- 8.6.5 When a teacher enters the program voluntarily, documentation will not be placed in the personnel file as long as participation continues on a voluntary basis. All communication between the teacher and the Consulting Teacher shall remain confidential.

- 8.7 Voluntary Participation of Experienced Probationary Teachers
 - 8.7.1 Probationary teachers not eligible for BTSA desiring assistance in improving their practice may apply to the PAR/BTSA Panel for such assistance on a confidential basis.
 - 8.7.2 The volunteer and Consulting Teacher will meet to determine the needs of the volunteering teacher as specifically as possible and will jointly develop an Assistance Plan.
 - 8.7.3 Consulting Teachers shall provide oral and written feedback to the volunteer teacher. All communication shall be confidential.
 - 8.7.4 The volunteer may terminate participation in the program at any time, through written notice to the Panel.
 - 8.7.5 When a teacher enters the program voluntarily, documentation will not be placed in the personnel file as long as participation continues on a voluntary basis. All communication between the teacher and the Consulting Teacher shall remain confidential.

8.8 The Peer Assistance and Review Panel

- 8.8.1 The governance structure of the program includes a joint teacher-administrator peer review panel that shall select Consulting Teachers, review peer review reports prepared by Consulting Teachers, and make recommendations to the governing board of a school district regarding participants in the program, including forwarding to the governing board the names of individuals who, after sustained assistance, are not able to demonstrate satisfactory improvement.
- 8.8.2 The majority of the Panel, four members, shall be composed of certificated classroom teachers chosen to serve on the Panel by the Association. The remainder of the Panel, three members, shall be composed of administrators chosen by the District.
- 8.8.3 The term of office will be three years, except for the initial Panel members, whose terms will be staggered terms of one to three years to assure continuity from year to year.
- 8.8.4 Decisions of the Panel shall be by consensus whenever possible. If a vote is required, action must be taken by an affirmative vote of at least a majority of members.
- 8.8.5 Consulting Teachers shall be selected by the majority vote of the Panel.
- 8.8.6 The selection process shall include provisions for classroom observation of the candidates for Consulting Teacher by the Panel.

- 8.8.7 The PAR Panel shall be responsible for:
 - 8.8.7.1 Establishing its own rules and procedures
 - 8.8.7.2 Selecting its own chairperson
 - 8.8.7.3 Establishing a procedure for application and selection of peer consultants
 - 8.8.7.4 Selecting peer consultants
 - 8.8.7.5 Accepting referrals for permanent teacher peer assistance from evaluators
 - 8.8.7.6 Accepting voluntary requests for assistance from individual teachers if there are sufficient Consulting Teachers available to serve these additional requests for service.
- 8.8.8 The panel shall also annually evaluate the impact of the district's peer assistance and review program in order to improve the program. This evaluation may include, but is not limited to, interviews or surveys of the program participants. The Panel may submit recommendations for improvement of the program to the governing Board of the District and to the Association.
- 8.8.9 Functions performed pursuant to this article by certificated employees employed in a bargaining unit position shall not constitute either management or supervisory functions as defined by subdivisions (g) and (m) of Section 3540.1 of the Government Code.
- 8.8.10 All proceedings and materials related to the administration of the PAR Program shall be strictly confidential. Panel members and Consulting Teachers may disclose such information only as necessary to administer the Program. Documents and writings related to an employee's participation in the PAR Program are regarded as personnel matters and shall be subject to the personnel record exemption of the Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et. Seq.)
- 8.8.11 Teachers who provide assistance and review shall have the same protection from liability and access to appropriate defense as other public school employees pursuant to Division 3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code.
- 8.8.12 By May 15 of each fiscal year, the PAR/BTSA Panel will establish a Program budget for the succeeding year including:
 - 8.8.12.1 The estimated revenue for the PAR Program
 - 8.8.12.2 The estimated expenditures based on
 - * The number of teachers mandated to take part
 - * The number of beginning teachers eligible for BTSA
 - * The number of spaces available for volunteers
 - * The projected number of Consulting Teachers needed
 - * Release time needed for PAR/BTSA Panel and Consulting Teachers
 - * Projected costs of training for everyone involved with PAR
 - * Projected cost of PAR funded staff development

- * Projected cost of curriculum development activities (if any)
- 8.8.13 A PAR/BTSA Panel member shall neither participate in discussion nor vote on any matter in which he or she has a personal conflict of interest.
- 8.8.14 Neither the teacher, the Consulting Teacher, or the evaluator may be present during confidential deliberations of the PAR/BTSA Panel. The Panel may request additional information from any person involved in the program.
- 8.8.15 The final report of the PAR/BTSA Panel, related to a permanent status of an unsatisfactory teacher, shall be reported to the teacher, the Consulting Teacher, the evaluator, and the Association representative prior to being forwarded to the Board of Education.

8.9 Consulting Teachers

- 8.9.1 A Consulting Teacher participating in this program shall be a credentialed classroom teacher with permanent status. The Consulting Teacher shall have at least three years of recent experience in classroom instruction.
- 8.9.2 The Consulting Teacher shall have demonstrated exemplary teaching ability, as indicated by, among other things, effective communication skills, subject matter knowledge, and mastery of a range of teaching strategies necessary to meet the needs of pupils in different contexts.
- 8.9.3 The Consulting Teacher shall have demonstrated positive personal relations, collaboration, and team building skills.
- 8.9.4 Duties of the Consulting Teacher may include, but are not limited to:
 - 8.9.4.1 Consulting with the participating teacher to develop strategies to improve in the areas targeted by the evaluator for improvement
 - 8.9.4.2 Meeting and consulting with the evaluator regarding the nature of assistance being provided
 - 8.9.4.3 Observations of the teacher in the classroom
 - 8.9.4.4 Allowing the teacher to observe Consulting Teacher or other teachers selected by the Consulting Teacher
 - 8.9.4.5 Attending any needed training in how to support another teacher or in subject area or teaching techniques
 - 8.9.4.6 Recommending or providing workshops for the participating teacher to attend

8.10 Budget and Use of Funds

8.10.1 The District may use the funds from this program for:

- 8.10.1.1 The implementation of the Peer Review and Assistance Program
- 8.10.1.2 The Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment (BTSA) Program
- 8.10.1.3 Any program that supports the training and development of new teachers
- 8.10.1.4 Professional development or other educational activities previously provided pursuant to Article 4, (commencing with Section 44490) of Chapter 3
- 8.10.1.5 Compensation for Consulting Teachers is \$40.00 per hour. The compensation for the PAR/BTSA panel is the negotiated committee rate.
- 8.10.2 Not more than 5% of the funds received by the school district for the Peer Assistance and Review for Teachers may be expended for administrative expenses.
- 8.10.3 It is the intent of the District and the Association that this Article remains in effect for as long as specific state funding for the California Peer Assistance and Review program is received by the District. If PAR funding is eliminated, this Article shall expire and have no force or effect without need for further action by either the District or the Association.

ARTICLE 9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

9.1 Definitions

- 9.1.1 A "grievance" is a claim filed by a unit member or the Association alleging that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of the provisions of this Agreement.
- 9.1.2 A "grievant" is a unit member who files a grievance or the Association.
- 9.1.3 For grievances filed by unit members, "immediate supervisor" shall mean the District administrator who is responsible for evaluating the grievant. For grievances filed by the Association, "immediate supervisor" shall mean the Grievance Officer.

9.2 Purpose

The purpose of the procedures described below is to resolve grievances at the lowest possible administrative level. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept as informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.

9.3 Informal Level

Before a unit member or the Association files a formal written grievance, and no later than thirty (30) days after the time the grievant knew or reasonably should have known that the alleged grievance occurred, the grievant shall meet in an attempt to resolve the grievance through informal conferences with the immediate supervisor or other appropriate site supervisor.

9.4 Formal Levels

- 9.4.1 Level One: Immediate Supervisor
 - 9.4.1.1. If the grievant is not satisfied with the outcome at the informal level, or if no resolution is reached, the grievant may file a formal written grievance with the immediate supervisor. The written grievance shall be submitted no later than ten (10) days after the completion of the informal level and shall include the following:
 - 9.4.1.1.1 Facts showing how the grievant has been adversely affected;
 - 9.4.1.1.2 The specific section(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated;
 - 9.4.1.1.3 The specific remedy sought;
 - 9.4.1.1.4 The names of all parties involved in the alleged grievance.

- 9.4.1.2 The immediate supervisor or other appropriate site supervisor shall communicate his/her decision with the rationale for that decision, to the grievant in writing within five (5) days after he/she receives the grievance.
- 9.4.1.3 If a conference needs to be held it must be requested and completed within the ten (10) day time limit for rendering a decision if a conference is requested by either the grievant or the immediate supervisor.
- 9.4.1.4 If an agreement is reached, the agreement shall be reduced to writing and shall be signed by the grievant, the Association, and the District. This agreement shall be non-precedential and shall constitute a settlement of the grievance.

9.4.2 Level Two-Grievance Officer

- 9.4.2.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the immediate supervisor's decision, or if no decision is rendered within the ten (10) day time limit, the grievant may appeal to the Grievance Officer designated by the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer no later than ten (10) days after the level one time limit for rendering a decision has expired. The statement shall include a copy of the original grievance, the decision rendered, and a clear and concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.
- 9.4.2.2 The Grievance Officer shall communicate his/her decision to the grievant in writing within fifteen (15) days of receiving the Level One appeal.
- 9.4.2.3 A conference shall be held within the fifteen (15) day time limit for rendering a decision if a conference has been requested by either the grievant or the Grievance Officer.

9.4.3 Level Three-Superintendent Chief Learning Officer

- 9.4.3.1 If the grievant is not satisfied with the Level Two decision, or if no written decision is rendered within the fifteen (15) day time limit, the grievant may appeal to the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer no later than ten (10) days after the Level Two time limit for rendering a decision has expired. The appeal shall include a copy of the original grievance and all related documentation.
- 9.4.3.2 The Superintendent Chief Learning Officer shall communicate his/her decision to the grievant in writing within ten (10) days of receiving the Level Two appeal.
- 9.4.3.3 A conference shall be held within the ten (10) day time limit for rendering a decision if a conference has been requested by either the grievant or the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer.

9.4.4 Level Four: Binding Arbitration

- 9.4.4.1 If the grievant is a unit member and the unit member is not satisfied with the Level Three decision, or if no decision is rendered within the ten (10) day time line following the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer's consideration of the grievance, the grievant may, within five (5) days, notify the Association in writing of the grievant's request for binding arbitration. If the Association agrees that the matter should be submitted to binding arbitration, the Association shall notify the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer of its decision to have the grievance submitted to binding arbitration. The Association's request for binding arbitration must be submitted no later than ten (10) days after the Level Three time limit for rendering a decision has expired.
- 9.4.4.2 The Association and the District shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator. If no agreement can be reached within five (5) days of when the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer's designee receives the arbitration request, the Association shall request a list of five (5) arbitrators from the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service. Each party shall alternately strike names until only one name remains. The remaining panel member shall be the arbitrator. The order of striking shall be by lot.
- 9.4.4.3 The fees and expenses of the arbitrator and stenographer shall be borne equally by the District and the Association. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them.
- 9.4.4.4 The parties shall work together in good faith with the arbitrator to schedule mutually acceptable hearing date(s).
- 9.4.4.5 The arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from, or modify the terms of the Agreement.
- 9.4.4.6 The arbitrator shall hear evidence and render a decision on the issue(s) submitted to him/her. The arbitrator shall make his/her decision by referring to the written grievance and the answers thereto at each step, plus any testimony or other evidence submitted by the parties that the arbitrator deems admissible. After reviewing the evidence, the arbitrator shall submit his/her decision in writing to both parties. If a question of arbitrability arises, the question shall be decided by the arbitrator prior to a hearing on the merits of the grievance.

9.5 Miscellaneous

- 9.5.1 All documents, communications, and records related to the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of any unit member who is a participant.
- 9.5.2 No reprisals of any kind shall be taken against a grievant.
- 9.5.3 Any District employee who is requested to appear at a grievance arbitration hearing by either party shall be released without loss of pay for a reasonable period of time to

- participate in the hearing.
- 9.5.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as prohibiting a grievant who is a unit member from requesting assistance from the Association or another employee of the District in processing a grievance. Unit member grievant's may request a representative from the Association or a person of his/her own choosing to accompany him/her at any level. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as prohibiting a unit member from presenting and processing their own grievance, short of arbitration, without the intervention of the Association.
- 9.5.5 The parties agree that the grievance process shall be confidential, including any arbitration hearing held in connection with a grievance.
- 9.5.6 If a unit member files a formal grievance without the Association's involvement, the District shall notify the Association President of the grievance and any proposed resolution and give the Association the opportunity to submit a formal response prior to reaching a final resolution of the grievance with the unit member.
- 9.5.7 The District and a grievant may agree in writing to suspend the grievance time limits at any point in the process.
- 9.5.8 If a grievant fails to comply with any time limit, the grievance shall be deemed dismissed and permanently withdrawn. If the District does not timely respond at any level, the grievance shall proceed to the next level.
- 9.5.9 If any timeline in this article is set to expire after the last instructional day, the time line shall be suspended until the first student instructional day of the following school year unless the District and the grievant agree otherwise.

ARTICLE 10 LEAVES

10.1 Personal Illness and Injury Leave

10.1.1 Sick leave

Full-time unit members shall be entitled to eleven (11) days of paid leave each school year for purposes of personal illness, injury or parental leave (EC 44977.5). Unit members who work less than full time shall be entitled to that portion of the eleven (11) days leave as the number of hours per day and days per week that he or she works bears to a full-time teaching assignment.

- 10.1.2 The District may require unit members to verify the reasons for taking personal illness and injury leave after three (3) days by requiring unit members to furnish a written statement from the treating physician or other licenced medical provider verifying the absence for injury or illness.
- 10.1.3 If the District finds that a unit member took an illness or injury leave for a purpose other than illness or injury, the unit member shall be subject to loss of pay for the days of inappropriate absence and appropriate disciplinary action.
- 10.1.4 If an illness or injury leave exceeds five (5) work days, the District may require the unit member to undergo a medical fitness for duty evaluation to determine whether he/she is able to return to work.
- 10.1.5 The District shall notify unit members of their accrued sick leave balance at the start of each school year.
- 10.1.6 When a unit member must be absent due to personal illness or injury, he/she must contact his/her immediate supervisor as soon as possible but in all events, in advance of his/her first assignment of the day on the first day of the leave. Such advance notification shall be in accordance with the requirements established by immediate supervisors except in cases of emergency. If a unit member arrives late for work and the District has hired a substitute to serve in their absence, the unit member's pay shall be docked in an amount equivalent to one day of pay for a substitute. Further, the unit member shall be required to remain and perform their duties.
- 10.1.7 Unit members returning from personal illness and injury leaves shall be entitled to return to the position held by the employee prior to the time of the leave.

10.2 Extended Sick Leave

Unit members shall be entitled to extended sick leave in accordance with Education Code sections 44977 and 44978 for a period of five (5) school months per injury or illness. Extended leave commences after a unit member has exhausted all accrued sick leave and industrial illness or accident leave pursuant to Education Code section 44984, if applicable. Unit members on extended sick leave shall be paid the difference between their salary and the amount paid to a substitute. The amount deducted shall not exceed the sum that is actually paid a substitute employee employed to fill his or her position during his or her absence or, if no substitute employee was employed, the amount that would have been paid to the substitute had he or she been employed. The school district shall make every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute employee. If no substitute can be found, and the district must hire to fill the position, the amount deducted from the unit member's salary shall not be more than fifty percent (50%) of their salary.

10.3 Catastrophic Sick Leave Bank

10.3.1 Creation

The Association and the District created the TTEA Catastrophic Sick Leave Bank ("Bank"). Individual members of the Association may not contribute earned or accumulated sick leave days to other members outside the Bank.

- 10.3.1.1 Days in the Bank shall accumulate from year to year and the balance shall be reported by October 31st of each year to the Association.
- Days shall be contributed to the Bank and withdrawn from the Bank without regard to the daily rate of pay of Bank participants.
- 10.3.1.3 A four member committee shall determine whether to approve requests to withdraw from the Bank. TTEA shall appoint one elementary teacher and one high school teacher to serve on the committee. The other two members shall be the administrator from the site where the request originates, and the Human Resources Officer.

10.3.2 Eligibility and Contributions

- 10.3.2.1 All unit members in their second year of employment with the District are eligible to contribute to the bank (this includes unit members who have not joined TTEA). Unit members in their first year of employment may not participate.
- 10.3.2.2 Participation is voluntary. Unit members who do not contribute to the Bank may not withdraw from the Bank.
- 10.3.2.3 Unit members may choose to begin participating in the Bank during an annual open enrollment period. The District shall provide unit members with a form for this purpose.
- 10.3.2.4 Eligible Unit members who elect to participate in the bank shall have one day each year in August deducted from that unit member's sick leave.
- 10.3.2.5 Participation shall continue from year to year until a unit member decides to withdraw, in writing, during an open enrollment period. The annual open

- enrollment period shall be from the first day that teachers begin work each year until October 10th
- 10.3.2.6 Participants shall contribute one day of sick leave per year. Participants who have withdrawn days from the Bank may contribute the same number of days withdrawn in future years.
- 10.3.2.7 Participants may not direct contributions to a specific person.
- 10.3.2.8 The Association may submit a request to the Committee to withdraw days on behalf of a participant.

10 3 3 Withdrawals from the Bank

- 10.3.3.1 Participants must have used all of their accrued sick leave to be eligible to withdraw from the Bank.
- 10.3.3.2 Withdrawals from the Bank shall be granted in units of no more than 10 days.
- 10.3.3.3 Participants applying to withdraw from the Bank will be required to provide a written statement from the treating physician or other licensed medical provider verifying the severity of the injury or illness and probable length of absence from work.
- 10.3.3.4 Days may not be withdrawn from the Bank to be used for an illness or injury which qualifies the unit member for worker's compensation benefits.
- 10.3.3.5 If the Bank does not have sufficient days to fund a withdrawal request, the request shall be denied.

10.4 Personal Necessity Leave

- 10.4.1 Personal Necessity Leave is provided for compelling personal business which cannot be attended to outside of normal work hours. Each year no more than eleven (11) days of accumulated sick leave may be used for occasions of personal necessity in accordance with Education Code Section 44981. Personal necessity leave shall exclude activities related to recreation, work stoppage, avocation or other employment. Except in the case of an emergency, unit members must make every effort to notify their immediate supervisor at least five (5) days in advance of this leave request. If a unit member uses personal necessity leave for a purpose not in accordance with Education code section 44981, they shall be subject to loss of pay for the day(s) of inappropriate absence and other disciplinary action.
 - 10.4.1.1 Once personal necessity leave is exhausted a unit member may use sick leave (per Article 10.1) for illness of an immediate family member as referenced in Article 10.5.1.1. This does not include Extended Sick Leave as defined in Article 10.2.
- 10.4.2 Unit members returning from personal necessity leave shall be returned to the position held by the employee prior to the time of the leave.

10.5 Bereavement Leave

- 10.5.1 Unit members shall be granted paid leave in the event of the death of a member of their immediate family. The leave shall be for a period of three (3) days. However, if a unit member is required to travel more than 300 miles from their home, the leave shall be five (5) days.
 - 10.5.1.1 For purposes of this provision, an immediate family member shall be limited to the mother, father, grandmother, grandfather or grandchild of a unit member or of the spouse or domestic partner of a unit member, or the spouse, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in-law, brother, or sister of a unit member, or any relative permanently living in the immediate household of a unit member.
- 10.5.2 Unit members must contact their immediate supervisor if they need to take bereavement leave in advance of their first assignment of the first day of the leave in accordance with the notice requirements established by their immediate supervisor.
- 10.5.3 Bereavement leave is not taken from sick leave; however, unit members may also use personal necessity leave for bereavement.
- 10.5.4 When a unit member returns from bereavement leave, they shall be returned to the position held by the employee prior to the time of the leave.

10.6 Pregnancy Disability Leave

- 10.6.1 Unit members are entitled to use accumulated sick leave and extended sick leave for disability caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery there from as set forth in Education code section 44965. Such leave shall not be used for child care, child rearing, or preparation for childbearing, but shall be limited to those disabilities set forth above. The length of the leave, including the date on which the leave shall commence and the date on which the duties are to be resumed, shall be determined by the unit member and their physician. Unit members taking pregnancy disability leave shall submit a letter from their treating physician establishing the date on which the leave commences and ends.
- 10.6.2 Unit members returning from pregnancy disability leave shall be entitled to the position held by the employee prior to the time of the leave.

10.7 Parental Leave

- 10.7.1 Unit members may use their sick leave for purposes of parental leave for a period of up to twelve (12) workweeks as provided by Education Code section 44977.5.
- 10.7.2 For unit members who have exhausted all available sick leave, including all accumulated sick leave, and continue to be absent from his or her duties on account of parental leave pursuant to Section 12945.2 of the Government Code, the amount deducted from the salary

due him or her for any of the remaining portion of the twelve (12) workweek period in which the absence occurs shall not exceed the sum that is actually paid a substitute employee employed to fill his or her position during his or her absence or, if no substitute employee was employed, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute had he or she been employed.

- 10.7.3 The twelve (12) workweek period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, taken during a period of parental leave.
- 10.7.4 Unit members shall not be provided more than one twelve (12) week period for parental leave during any twelve (12) month period.
- 10.7.5 Parental leave taken pursuant to this section shall run concurrently with parental leave taken pursuant to Section 12945.2 of the Government Code. The aggregate amount of parental leave taken pursuant to this section and Section 12945.2 of the Government Code shall not exceed twelve (12) workweeks in a twelve (12) month period.
- 10.7.6 For purposes of this section, "parental leave" means leave for reason of the birth of a child of the employee, or the placement of a child with an employee in connection with the adoption or foster care of the child by the employee.
- 10.7.7 If both parents of a child work for the district, their family care and medical leave related to the birth or placement of the child shall be limited to a combined total of twelve (12) workweeks. This restriction shall apply regardless of the legal status of both parents relationship.
- 10.7.8 The school district shall make every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute employee. If no substitute can be found, and the district must hire to fill the position, the amount deducted from the unit member's salary shall not be more than fifty percent (50%) of their salary.

10.8 Family Leave (FMLA/CFRA)

- 10.8.1 Eligible unit members shall be entitled to a leave of absence without pay for the purpose of childbearing, child rearing and other purposes as specified by law in accordance with the Federal and California Family Rights and Medical Leave Acts ("FMLA/CFRA Leave").
- 10.8.2 Such leaves shall be granted without pay or credit for service on the salary schedule.
- 10.8.3 Upon returning from an unpaid leave, unit members shall be entitled to a position for which they are appropriately credentialed and qualified. If the unit member is returning within the same school year in which the unpaid leave was initially granted, the unit member is entitled to return to the position held previously.

10.9 Industrial Accident and Illness Leave

10.9.1 Unit members are entitled to industrial accident and illness leave in accordance with Education Code section 44984.

- 10.9.2 In order to be eligible for such leave, unit members shall report work-related injuries or illnesses as soon as possible in writing on the District form designated for that purpose.
- 10.9.3 Prior to or during such leave, the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or his/her designee may require verification by a District appointed physician of the need for and/or use of the leave at no cost to the unit member.
- 10.9.4 The leave shall be charged to Industrial Accident and Illness Leave. However, should it be determined by the District's workers compensation insurance carrier that an illness or accident was not job related, the leave shall be charged to sick leave and extended sick leave, if applicable.
- 10.9.5 Such leave shall not exceed sixty (60) days during which the schools of the District are required to be in session or when the unit member would otherwise have been performing work for the District in any one fiscal year for the same industrial accident or illness.
- 10.9.6 The District may require a unit member on such leave to be examined by a physician designated by the District to assist in determining the length of time during which the unit member will be temporarily unable to perform assigned duties and the degree to which a disability is attributable to the claimed illness or injury.
- Payment for wages lost on any day shall not, when added to a temporary disability award, exceed a unit member's full salary as defined in Education Code section 44984(d).
- 10.9.8 Industrial illness and accident leave will be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a temporary disability indemnity award.
- 10.9.9 When industrial accident and illness leave has been exhausted, unit members may use their sick leave. However, if a unit member is still receiving temporary disability indemnity, he/she shall be entitled to use only so much of his/her sick leave which, when added to his/her disability indemnity, will result in a payment of not more than his/her full salary.
- 10.9.10 Unit members returning from industrial accident and illness leave shall be returned a position for which they are credentialed and qualified.

10.10 Jury Duty and Subpoenas

- 10.10.1 Unit members shall receive paid leave while serving on jury duty or appearing at a legal proceeding in response to a subpoena. If the appearance is less than twenty (20) miles from a unit member's home, he or she shall remit to the District the amount he or she received for attending jury duty or appearing in response to the subpoena exclusive of mileage reimbursement.
- 10.10.2 Unit members returning from jury duty leave shall be returned to the position held by the

employee prior to the time of the leave.

10.11 Sabbatical Leave

- 10.11.1 Any permanent full-time unit member who has taught in the District for seven consecutive years shall be eligible to apply for a sabbatical leave for a period of up to one (1) year. Applications must be filed with the Board of Trustees by January 15th for a sabbatical during the following school year. The Board's decision shall be final.
- 10.11.2 Compensation shall be one half (1/2) of a unit member's annual salary for a full year sabbatical and one fourth (1/4) of their annual salary for a one-semester sabbatical.
- 10.11.3 Leave granted must be for the purpose of formal educational improvement. Travel is not sufficient cause for sabbatical leave and therefore is not allowed. The applicant's program shall include at least eight (8) semester units or an equivalent number of quarter units.
- 10.11.4 Unit members on sabbatical leave shall progress on the salary schedule the same as if they had remained in active service.
- 10.11.5 Unit members who are granted a one semester sabbatical leave shall be required to continue working for the District for one year following their return from the leave. Unit members who are granted a one year sabbatical leave shall be required to continue working for the District for two years following their return from the leave.
- 10.11.6 Unit members shall receive compensation while on leave if they file a suitable bond indemnifying the Board of Trustees for any salary paid the unit member if the unit member fails to render the agreed upon period of service with the District after they return from leave, or if they fail to carry out the proposed program of study.
- 10.11.7 Unit members returning from sabbatical leave shall be returned to the position held at the time the sabbatical leave was granted, unless the unit member agrees otherwise. (See Education code section 44973).

10.12 Unpaid Leave

- 10.12.1 The Board of trustees may grant an employee an unpaid leave for up to one school year for reasons of child rearing, health or other circumstances. The reason and duration for the leave must be stated with the leave request. The granting of such leave will be at the discretion of the Board and the leave must be used for the purpose for which it is granted.
- 10.12.2 Applications must be filed by January 15 for a leave commencing the following school year. The original application will be signed by the immediate supervisor, the unit member and then submitted by the unit member, to the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee, by January 15, for final recommendation to the Board of Trustees.
- 10.12.3 Such leaves will be granted without pay, health and welfare benefits or credit for service

on the salary schedule.

- 10.12.4 Unpaid leaves terminate at the end of the school year or the end of the stated leave period. The employee must reapply in writing if they are seeking to extend the leave. The employee must reapply for an extension by January 15th for leave requests that expire at the end of the school year. For leaves terminating at times other than the end of the school year, the employee must reapply for an extension at least two months before the expiration of the leave
- 10.12.5 Upon return from unpaid leave, the employee is entitled to a position in the District for which he/she is appropriately credentialed and qualified. If the term of the leave is within the same school year and the employee is returning within the same school year, he/she is entitled to return to the position held previously.

10.13 Educational Improvement Leave

- 10.13.1 Full-time unit members who have taught for the District for four (4) full years may apply for an educational improvement leave. Such leaves shall be without pay or other benefits. The District's Board of Trustees shall not grant educational improvement leaves to more than 2% of its certificated employees during any school year. Such leaves shall be for a period of a quarter, a trimester, a semester, or one (1) full school year. The Board shall grant or deny the request for leave after considering the recommendation of the applicant's principal and the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer.
- 10.13.2 Applications must be filed by January 15 for a leave commencing the following school year and 75 calendar days prior to the start of the leave for any educational improvement leave commencing at any time other than the beginning of a school year. The original application will be signed by the immediate supervisor, the unit member and then submitted by the unit member to the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee, by January 15, for final recommendation to the Board of Trustees. Unit members will have until February 19 to retract their request for leave. In the case of the 75 day stipulation, the unit member will have 25 calendar days to retract their request for leave. Request for retraction will be in writing and submitted to the Human Resources department.
- 10.13.3 Unit members on an educational improvement leave must give notice of their intent to return as required by the District when the leave was initially granted.
- 10.13.4 Unit members returning from educational improvement leaves shall not be granted step advancement on the salary schedule for the time they were on leave.
- 10.13.5 Unit members, upon return from an educational improvement leave, shall be returned to a position as determined by their immediate supervisor. However, immediate supervisors shall consult with unit members before making such determinations.
- 10.13.6 Educational improvement leaves shall be memorialized in writing and signed by the

Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or his/her designee and the unit member.

10.14 Military Leave

- 10.14.1 Unit members who are members of any reserve corps of the Armed Forces of the United States, the National Guard or the Naval Militia, or who are inducted or who are otherwise ordered to active duty shall be granted such leave as required by the Education and Military and Veteran Codes.
- 10.14.2 Unit members shall provide a copy of the military orders to the District's Human Resources Office with the request for military leave.
- 10.14.3 Upon return from military leave, unit members shall be returned to the position they held at the time the military leave was granted, unless the unit member agrees otherwise.

10.15 Job Sharing Leave

10.15.1 A "job share leave" is defined as two unit members sharing one (1) full-time position for a full school year. Applicants for job share leave must submit a written proposal to the Human Resources Department no later than January 15 of the preceding school year. The original application will be signed by the immediate supervisor, the unit member and then submitted by the unit member, to the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee, by January 15, for final recommendation to the Board of Trustees. Unit members allowed to participate in the job shares must sign a job share agreement with the District by March 1. The Board of Trustees shall determine whether to grant or deny proposed job-share leaves.

10.15.2 Job share proposals must include:

- Proposed work schedule
- Proposed job-share partner
- Benefits to students being served
- Advantage(s) to the instructional program
- 10.15.3 Each employee team in a shared teaching arrangement assumes the same commitment as a full time teacher with the following stipulations:
 - Participations in back-to school night and open house. Teachers who are working a single semester must attend the events during that semester only.
 - For Parent-Teacher Conference week both partners will coordinate and make every effort to fully participate in all conferences.
 - Coordinate attendance at staff meetings and Professional Learning Communities.
 - Coordinate acceptance of student supervisory duties.
 - Coordinate participation in student-centered meetings (i.e. SST, IEP) between the shared teaching partners so that relevant information is presented and received.

- 10.15.4 Job Share leaves terminate at the end of the school year. The employee must reapply in writing if they are seeking to extend the job share and must reapply by January 15th.
- 10.15.5 If one partner resigns or is unable to fulfill his/her duties, the remaining partner shall be offered the other partner's portion of the job share for the remaining portion of the school year before it is offered to other unit members, a substitute or advertised to the public. If the remaining partner does not accept the other partner's portion, the district may use an expedited posting process of three (3) days internal posting prior to external posting.

10.16 Reduced Workload Leave

- 10.16.1 The District may allow unit members to participate in a reduced workload program ("Program") consistent with current applicable law, including assignment to a permanent substitute pool. (See Education code sections 22713; 44922).
- 10.16.2 Unit members must meet all of the following criteria to be eligible to participate in the Program:
 - 10.16.2.1 Unit members must be at least 55 years old and less than 65 years old prior to participating in the Program. Unit members participating in the Program who reach the age of 65 during a school year may continue participating through the end of that school year.
 - 10.16.2.2 Unit members must have been employed full-time by the District in a certificated position for at least ten (10) years prior to participating in the Program.
 - 10.16.2.3 During the period of time immediately preceding a unit member's request to participate in the Program, he or she must have worked full-time in a certificated position with the District for a total of five

 (5) years with no break in service. For purposes of this paragraph, sabbaticals and other approved leaves of absence shall not constitute a break in service.
 - 10.16.2.4 Unit members working in pre-kindergarten through twelfth grade must not hold a position with a salary greater than any District principal.
- 10.16.3 Unit members may participate in the program for no longer than five (5) years.
 - 10.16.3.1 The option to participate in the Program may be exercised only at the request of the unit member and can be revoked only with the mutual consent of the District and the unit member.
 - 10.16.3.2 Unit members must notify the District no later than January 15 of their job share interest to begin participating in the Program the following school year. The original application will be signed by the immediate supervisor, the unit

member and then submitted by the unit member, to the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee, by January 15, for final recommendation to the Board of Trustees. Unit members allowed to participate in job shares must sign a job share agreement with the District by March 1.

- 10.16.3.3 At the end of the five (5) year period, or when a participating unit member reaches the age of sixty-five (65), whichever occurs first, the following options shall be available to him or her:
 - 10.16.3.3.1 Resign or retire.
 - 10.16.3.3.2 Continue to work part-time. If this occurs the District shall be released from its obligation to contribute to the retirement of the unit member on a full-time basis.
 - 10.16.3.3.3 Return to full-time employment. Such requests shall be in writing and filed with the District's Human Resources office no later than February 1st.
- 10.16.3.4 Part-time for the purpose of this article shall be any fraction of a teaching year, but no less than half-time. The part-time configuration shall be mutually determined by the immediate supervisor in consultation with the unit member.
- 10.16.3.5 The Participating unit member's salary shall be the equivalent of the FTE that they are assigned to work. Unit members participating in the Program shall advance on the salary schedule in the same manner had they been working full time.
- 10.16.3.6 Participating unit members shall receive the same health and welfare benefits as received by full-time unit members. In addition, participating unit members shall be granted the same amount of sick leave as full-time unit members. However, a full day of sick leave shall be deducted for an absence of less than a full day.
- 10.16.3.7 Participating unit members and the District shall contribute to the State Teachers Retirement System as if the unit member were full time.

ARTICLE 11 CLASS SIZE

The District and the Association will make every effort to take Advantage of any funded class size reduction programs.

- 11.1 The District shall have the discretion to determine class size, subject to the following conditions: During extraordinary fiscal emergencies, it is agreed the district and association will evaluate class size ranges, and will implement a temporary Memorandum of Understanding suspending class ranges and limitations indicated below for a specific period of time.
 - K-3 Up to 27 students per class. Classes could exceed 27 with teacher permission. If the maximum of 27 is exceeded, an amount equal to the top step for a teacher's aide (Range 7, Step 10) will be allocated to the teacher. Additional instructional supplies will be covered by site discretionary funds.
 - 4-5 Up to 31 students per class. Classes could exceed 31 with teacher permission. If the maximum of 31 is exceeded, an amount equal to the top step for a teacher's aide (Range 7, Step 10) will be allocated to the teacher. Additional instructional supplies will be covered by site discretionary funds.
 - K-5 Combination classes will have a class size, maximum of 25. All other language about additional compensation past 25 will apply.
 - 6-12 No teacher will have more than 170 enrolled student contacts or no class shall exceed 32 students without teacher permission. Instrumental music and P.E. are exempted.
- 11.2 If the maximum number of students enrolled exceeds the K-12 numbers noted above in 11.1, an amount of money equal to one hour of the top step for a teacher's aide (Range 7, Step 10), per student over the noted number, will be allocated to the teacher. In the case of grades 6-12, teacher count will be based on students over 32 per class if 11.1 applies.
- 11.3 K-12 Special Ed students mainstreamed in the regular classroom are considered part of the total.
- 11.4 There will be a grace period of three weeks in which these limitations will not be enforced commencing with the first day of school.

ARTICLE 12 HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

12.1 Coverage and Eligibility

The District shall provide an annual contribution as detailed below, to each full-time unit member for his/her choice of a District offered health and welfare benefits package, including medical, dental, vision and life insurance plans.

Employee Only (Single) \$8,900 (\$809.09 per month for eleven (11) months) Employee + One (1) \$10,300 (\$936.36 per month for eleven (11) months) Employee + Family \$14,100 (1281.82 per month for eleven (11) months)

- 12.1.1 Except as specified in 12.1.4, below, the District shall provide benefits coverage from July 1 through June 30, with the unit member's contributions deducted in the August through June pay warrants for all costs in excess of the District's per year cap as noted in 12.1.
- 12.1.2 For unit members who work a minimum of 60% of a full time assignment for a full school year, the District shall pay the monthly contribution toward benefits for the unit member for a 12 month period. Unit members who work less than 60% of a full-time assignment do not receive a District contribution toward benefits
- 12.1.3 For unit members who work a minimum of 60% per day, five days per week, for less than a full school year, the District shall pay the monthly contribution toward benefits only for the number of months the unit member actually works.
- 12.1.4 A unit member employed as a temporary certificated employee (as defined by the Education Code) shall receive District-paid health and welfare benefits only while under contract, unless the unit member is rehired for the following school year. In that case, upon rehire notification, the District shall make/continue its contributions and shall collect member contributions. Should rehire notification occur after a unit member has paid any of the District's share of benefit costs, the unit member shall be reimbursed for such costs. The District shall give annual written notice of this procedure to all affected unit members prior to employment.
- 12.1.5 Unit members who are on unpaid leaves shall not be entitled to a District contribution toward health benefits; however, the District shall allow unit members who are on a District approved unpaid leave to participate in the District's health and welfare benefit plans in accordance with their rights under the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act ("COBRA") at no cost to the District.

12.2 Retiree Health and Welfare Benefits

12.2.1 To be eligible for a District contribution toward health and welfare benefits in retirement, unit members must, at the time of their retirement: (1) be at least fifty five (55) years old;

- (2) have been employed by the District for twenty (20) or more years; and (3) have been employed as a unit member prior to July 1, 1988. Unit members hired on or after July 1, 1988 shall not be eligible for a District contribution for health benefits but may purchase benefits as set forth in 12.2.4 below.
- 12.2.2 Unit members eligible to receive a District contribution toward retiree health and welfare benefits shall receive the same District health and welfare benefits contribution as is provided to active unit members as that contribution may change from time-to-time and the unit member and their spouses/domestic partners may participate in the District's health benefit plans for ten (10) years, or until the unit member attains age 65, whichever occurs first.
- 12.2.3 After age 65, if permitted by the benefit plan(s), unit members and their surviving spouses may elect to continue participating in the District's health and welfare benefit plans at the sole expense of the unit member or their surviving spouse.
- 12.2.4 Unit members hired on or after July 1, 1988, or unit members hired before July 1, 1988 who do not meet the eligibility requirements for a District contribution toward retiree health benefits shall be allowed to participate in the District's health and welfare benefit plans at their own expense.

ARTICLE 13 WAGES

- 13.1 All full-time contracted employees, other than hourly employees, shall receive compensation for their services according to the salary schedule. Contract employees will be expected to participate in 6.5 hours of professional development activities distributed throughout the teacher work year (see 4.2.5).
 - 13.1.1 Salary shall be disbursed to each employee by check or direct deposit, in an individual envelope, on or before the last working day of each month, with the exception of July and December. The December disbursement will occur on the first working day of January as set by PCOE of the following year. Monies earned in December will appear in the following year's W-2 reporting form.
 - 13.2 Initial Placement for Entering Employees
 - 13.2.1 A teacher entering the service of the District for the first time shall be granted outside teaching experience credit on the following basis.
 - 13.2.1.1 The outside teaching experience must be verified in writing by the previous employer or employers, giving dates of service by school year.
 - 13.2.1.2 To receive credit, a teacher under contract must have taught 75% or more of the school days in any school year for which credit is granted and this fact must also be in writing from the previous employer.
 - 13.2.1.3 Substitute teachers who are then offered a regular contract shall be credited for one year teaching experience, provided they have taught the equivalent of 75% of a teaching year accumulated in the two consecutive previous years.
 - Verified teaching experience outside the District on a regular credential shall be credited in the following manner for the following years:

 One Year:

 Step Two (2)

One Year:	Step 1 wo (2)
Two Years:	Step Three (3)
Three Years:	Step Four (4)
Four Years:	Step Five (5)
Five Years:	Step Six (6)
Six Years:	Step Seven (7)
Seven Years:	Step Eight (8)
Eight Years:	Step Nine (9)
Nine Years:	Step Ten (10)

13.2.1.5 For new hires, beginning on July 1, 2018, Step Ten (10) on the salary schedule shall be the maximum credit allowed for initial placement.

13.2.2 Other certificated personnel shall be granted credit for past experience in other fields in accordance with the above policy.

13.3 Step Advancement

- 13.3.1 One (1) step advancement on the salary schedule shall be given for each one year of certificated employment to a maximum of ten (10) steps, but not to exceed the step maximum of each column of the salary schedule.
- 13.3.2 No employee shall receive a step advancement unless the employee has been in service to the District at least 75% of the instructional days of the school year.
- 13.3.3 Unit members will advance on the salary scheduled based on working 75% of a full-equivalent (FTE). For unit members working less than a 75% FTE, advancement on the salary schedule will occur when the individual accrues a minimum of 75% of an FTE. For example, a 20% employee will advance on the salary schedule following completion of 4 years at a 20% position. This step advancement will be effective the following school year.
- 13.3.4 Employees may not move more than one (1) step in any one school year.

13.4 Column Placement or Unit Credits

- 13.4.1 Columns shall be identified and established on the adopted District salary schedule indicating educational unit requirements for each column.
- 13.4.2 Employees may be advanced on the salary schedule on the basis of approved educational units they take beyond the granting of a Bachelor's Degree. No units shall be considered for column placement taken before a Bachelor's Degree is obtained.
- 13.4.3 All units must have prior approval of the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee before credit will be granted for placement on the salary columns. The approval document will be signed by the immediate supervisor, the unit member and then submitted by the unit member, to the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee for final approval prior to beginning the course. Units completed without prior approval may be approved after the fact using the above provisions as long as the request is submitted within one year from the completion of the course. Credit for advancement on the salary schedule for post course approval units will be granted the following school year.
- 13.4.4 The number of units a teacher may take during the school year shall be limited when in the judgment of the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee the number of units would interfere with the performance of the teacher.
- 13.4.5 All interpretations for placement on the salary schedule shall be based on verifiable information which shall be in the employee's file in the District Office not later than September 30 of each year to receive column placement starting from the beginning of the

current school year. Verifiable information for units that are received after September 30 will be accepted and any movement on the salary schedule will become effective based upon the date the verifiable information is received in Human Resources.

13.4.6 Units as used in this contract mean semester units, and each quarter unit will be converted on the ratio of two-thirds of a semester unit.

13.5 Special Education

The District shall provide a \$2,000 annual stipend (prorated for partial FTE) to an individual that is assigned as a Resource Specialist, Speech and Language Pathologist, Adaptive PE teacher, Visually Impaired teacher, Deaf and Hard of Hearing, or Special Day Class teacher, provided that, the individual holds a provisional, preliminary, or clear California special education credential or Resource Specialist certification.

13.6 Bilingual Education and Support

The District shall provide a \$1,500 annual stipend (prorated for partial FTE) to an individual that is assigned to teach in a "primary language program," that requires the individual hold a BCLAD certification. The District shall provide a \$750 annual stipend (prorated for partial FTE) to an individual that holds a BCLAD, but is not assigned to a primary language program who agrees to provide bilingual support.

13.7 Master's or Doctoral Degree

The District shall provide an annual stipend of one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) to those employees who have received a Master's Degree from an accredited institution of higher learning. Employees who have obtained a Doctoral degree or both a Master's & Doctoral degree, from an accredited institution of higher learning, will be paid an annual stipend of two thousand dollars (\$2,000).

13.8 Longevity Increments

The District shall provide for longevity increments on the basis of service at the 15th, 18th, 21st and 25th consecutive years of service at the columns and amounts indicated on the salary schedule.

13.9 Counselor/Nurse Compensation

All Counselors and Nurses shall be placed on the salary schedule at the step and column as prescribed by this article. They will be compensated for each extra day at their daily per diem rate.

13.10 Librarian Compensation

Librarians have an extended work year of an additional ten (10) days at their daily per diem rate.

13.11 Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA)

- 13.11.1 Teachers on Special Assignment may have their work year extended up to an additional five (5) days per year with mutual consent (with the exception of Article 13.11.2)
- 13.11.2 Teachers on Special Assignment working as Teacher Technology Specialist shall have an extended work year of 205 days.

13.12 School Site Leadership Team

The Board will allocate \$600 additional compensation for each school site leadership team member as follows:

Elementary		Must Include
Donner Trail Elementary	3	1 Primary,1 Intermediate, 1 Additional Position
Truckee Elementary	8	(Pre K-K) Grades 1,2,3,4,5, 2 Additional Positions
Kings Beach Elementary	7	(Pre K-K) Grades 1,2,3,4, 2 Additional Positions
Tahoe Lake Elementary	7	(Pre K-K) Grades 1,2,3,4, 2 Additional Positions
Glenshire Elementary	8	(Pre K-K) Grades 1,2,3,4,5, 2 Additional Positions
Middle School		
Alder Creek Middle School	8	Math, LA, Sci, SS, PE, Sp Ed, 2 Additional Positions
North Tahoe School	9	Math, LA, Sci, SS, PE, Sp Ed, Grade 5, 2 Additional Positions
High School		
Truckee High School	10	Math, Sci, PE, SS, Sp Ed, CTE, World Language, Language Arts, 2 Additional Positions
North Tahoe High School	10	Math, Sci, PE, SS, Sp Ed, CTE, World Language, Language Arts, 2 Additional Positions
Sierra High School/Alt. Ed	3	1 SHS, 1 CSA, 1 Additional Position

13.13 Home and Hospital, and Translating Compensation

Home and Hospital, and Translating personnel shall receive compensation at the rate of \$40.00 per hour for District scheduled class and meeting times.

- 13.14 Athletic, Music, Spirit, Secondary EL Coordinator and Drama Compensation
 - 13.14.1 Employees serving in secondary (Grades 6-12) athletic, music, spirit, drama, and Secondary EL Coordinator positions in the District shall be paid in accordance with the Extra Pay Schedules. The % established below is based on the current salary schedule and Increment Table.
 - 13.14.2 The added drama stipend will be 6% for the Director of a dramatic production and 8% for the Director of a musical production. The stipend is conditional upon the performance of a full production, no more than one (1) each semester, to which the public is invited. One (1) of the productions may be a musical. The drama stipend shall be available to high school or middle school employees, but the production shall be a high school program.
 - 13.14.3 An added stipend of 4% will be paid for the assistant director of a musical production.
 - 13.14.4 The added stipend of 12% per year for the middle and high school music teacher is conditional upon added music activities, which shall include the following or their equivalent: performance at home league football games; performance home league basketball games; holiday concert (band and chorus); Song Fest (band and chorus); competition in one or more music festivals (band and chorus); exchange concerts with other schools (band and chorus) or various field trips to musical events (band and chorus); Graduation (band and/or chorus); community events (band and chorus).
 - 13.14.4.1 The added stipend of the music teacher may be prorated per the decision of the Superintendent Chief Learning Officer or designee and the immediate supervisor in exchange for partial service of the above.
 - 13.14.5 If coaching, music or drama services are interrupted, the returning coach, music, or drama staff member will be placed on his/her salary schedule at the step and column where they last ended their service.

13.15 Other Compensation

A unit member may earn extra compensation outside the professional workday using the following schedule:

• \$25.00 Per Hour (Non-Academic Extracurricular Duties)

- \$30.00 Per Hour (Curriculum Development & Committee Work)
- \$40.00 Per Hour (Planning, Preparation & Presenting Student Instruction such as extended school year program)
- \$40.00 flat fee per game/match for high school/middle school athletics scorekeeping and clock (volleyball and basketball) and clock (football).

13.16 Committee Assignment Compensation

13.16.1 It is expressly understood that a teacher's professional responsibility include various committee assignments such as curriculum development, in-service, etc.

13.16.2 Participation on such committees should normally take place during the course of the school year. It is understood that committee work which must take place outside a normal work day as defined in Article 4.1.1.shall be compensated; this shall specifically be interpreted as after 6:00 pm or on non-contractual days, and shall be compensated for at the rate of \$30.00 per hour or the equivalent, \$150.00/day.

13.17 Teacher Coverage

In cases where staff fill in to provide teacher coverage in lieu of a substitute, the rate of compensation will be \$40/hour for taking an entire class or their share of that amount, to be no less than \$13.50/hour if a class is divided into three or more rooms.

- 13.18 Teacher assigned to teach a class or section in addition to full-time employment status
 - 13.18.1 If the school operates on a 6 period day, the teacher would be paid an additional 20% of his or her daily rate.
 - 13.18.2 If the school operates on a 4 period block schedule, the teacher would be paid an additional 33.33% of his/her daily rate.

13.19 IRC 125

The District will offer unit members an IRC 125 plan to the maximum limits permitted by law.

13.20 The District shall retain all rights, responsibility and control in the selection, hiring, evaluation, termination and in-servicing of all music, drama, yearbook, athletic and academic team coaching positions regardless of whether these positions are paid for out of district monies or paid for with non-district monies.

13.21 Increment Table for Percentage Based Stipends:

Year	% Multiplied by Salary Figure At
First-Second	Col. 3, Step 3
Third-Fourth	Col. 3, Step 4
Fifth-Sixth	Col. 3, Step 5
Seventh- Eighth	Col. 3, Step 6
Ninth-Tenth	Col. 3, Step 7
More than Ten Years	Col. 3, Step 8

HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETICS EXTRA PAY SCHEDULES			
Stipend: Dollar Amount or %	Stipend: Dollar Amount or % of Current Salary Schedule as Referenced in Increment Schedule		
Athletic Director		8% & 1 Release Period for 4X4 Block Schedule and 2 Release Periods for 6 Period or Modified Block Day	
Alpine Skiing [Men & Women's Combined]	Men/Women Combined	8%	
Alpine Skiing Assistant	[1] Only	\$2,000	
Baseball	Varsity Men's	8%	
Baseball	Assistant Varsity Men's	\$2,000	
Baseball	Junior Varsity	\$2,000	
Baseball	Freshman	\$1,500	
Basketball	Varsity Men/Women	8%	
Basketball	Assistant Varsity Men/Women	\$2,000	
Basketball	Junior Varsity Men/Women	\$2,000	
Basketball	Freshman Men/Women	\$1,500	
Cheerleading	[1] Coach	5%	
Cross Country Running	Varsity Men/Women Combined	8%	
Cross Country Running Assistant	Varsity Men/Women Combined	\$2,000	
Football	Varsity	8%	
Football	Varsity [2] Assistants	\$2,000 Each	
Football	Junior Varsity	\$2,000	
Football	Freshman	\$1,500	
Golf	Men's	5%	
Golf	Women's	5%	
Intramural Athletic Director		8%	
Nordic Skiing	Men/Women Combined	8%	
Nordic Skiing	[1] Assistant	\$2,000	
Snowboarding	[1] Coach Only Men/Women Combined	5%	

Soccer	Varsity Men/Women	8%
Soccer	Assistant Varsity	\$2,000
	Men/Women	
Soccer	Junior Varsity Men/Women	\$2,000
Soccer	Freshman Men/Women	\$1,500
Softball	Varsity Women's	8%
Softball	Assistant Varsity Women's	\$2,000
Softball	Junior Varsity	\$2,000
Softball	Freshman	\$1,500
Swimming	[1] Coach Only	5%
	Men/Women	
	Combined	
Tennis	Men's Team	5%
Tennis	Women's Team	5%
Track	Men/Women Combined	8%
Track	[2] Assistant	\$2,000 Each
Volleyball	Women's	8%
Volleyball	Assistant Varsity	\$2,000
Volleyball	Junior Varsity	\$2,000
Volleyball	Freshman	\$1,500
Wrestling	[1] Coach	5%

	CADEMICS EXTRA PAY SCHEDULE hedule as Referenced in Increment Schedule
Academic Student Team Coaching	\$800
Academic Student Team Coaching Assistant	\$400
Coordinator of Student Activities	12%
Curriculum Teacher Facilitator	\$2,000
Drama – Drama Production	6%
Drama – Musical Production	8%
Drama – Assistant Director Musical	4%
High School Yearbook	6% If Not Offered as a Class
Lites	Enrollment Divided by 100 x \$500
[Leaders Integrating Technology in Education]	
Music – Instrumental	12%
SST/SART Coordinator	\$1,000
Theater Operations AV Specialist	6%
Secondary EL Coordinator	8%
Athlete Committed	\$3,000
Link Crew	\$2,000

NOTE: If site level funds are available the site principal may offer compensation for specific temporary work needed according to Section 13.15.

MIDDLE SCHOOL ATHLETIC EXTRA PAY SCHEDULE		
Dollar Amount or % of Current Salary Schedule as Referenced in Increment Schedule		
Athletic Director	2.5%	
Girls Basketball 6/7	2.0%	
Girls Basketball 8	2.0%	
Boys Basketball 6/7	2.0%	
Boys Basketball 8	2.0%	
Cross Country	2.0%	
Assistant Cross Country	\$500	
Nordic	2.0%	
Nordic Assistant	\$500	
Volleyball 6/7	2.0%	
Volleyball 8	2.0%	
Track	2.0%	
Track Assistant	\$500	
Wrestling	2.0%	
Boys Soccer	2.0%	
Girls Soccer	2.0%	

The increment salary schedule will be applied for percentage based stipends for all middle school athletic positions starting July 1, 2018.

MIDDLE SCHOOL ACADEMIC EXTRA PAY SCHEDULE Dollar Amount or % of Current Salary Schedule as Referenced in Increment Schedule	
Curriculum Teacher Facilitators	\$2,000
Lites	Enrollment Divided by 100 x \$500
[Leadership Integrating Technology	
in Education]	
Music	12%
SST/SART Coordinator	\$1,000
Student Activities Coordinator	\$1,000
Theater Operations AV Specialist	\$800
Yearbook	6% If Not Offered as a Class
Secondary EL Coordinator	8%

NOTE: If site level funds are available the site principal may offer compensation for specific temporary work needed according to Section 13.15.

ELEMENTARY ACADEMIC EXTRA PAY SCHEDULE		
Curriculum Teacher Facilitator	\$2,000	
Lites [iLearn]	\$2,000	
Lites	Enrollment Divided by 100 x \$500	
[Leadership Integrating Technology		
in Education]		
SST/SART Coordinator [1 Per Site]	\$1,000	
Theater Operations AV Specialist	\$600	

NOTE: If site level funds are available the site principal may offer compensation for specific temporary work needed according to Section 13.15.

K-12 EXTRA PAY SCHEDULE		
Bilingual Education/BCLAD assigned to a	\$1,500	
Primary Language Program		
Bilingual Education/BCLAD not assigned to a	\$750	
Primary Language Program		
Department Chairperson/	\$600	
Grade Level Chair		
Leaders		
Doctoral Degree	\$2,000	
Home & Hospital	\$40 Per Hour	
Master's Degree	\$1,000	
Master's + Doctoral	\$2,000	
Special Education - Per Article 13.5	\$2,000	
Translating	\$40 Per Hour	

ARTICLE 14 SAVINGS PROVISION

14.1 If any provisions of this agreement are held to be contrary to law by the Public Employment Relations

Board or a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisions shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions of this agreement shall continue in full force and effect. If a provision is deemed to be invalid, the parties shall meet to renegotiate the provision deemed invalid by request of either party.

ARTICLE 15 SCOPE OF BARGAINING

- 15.1 The parties agree that Section 3543.2 of the Government Code (SB 160) defines the scope of representation for meeting and negotiation and further agree that Section 3543.2 of the Government Code states the public school employer may consult with any employee or employee organization on matters outside the scope of representation.
- 15.2 Any policies or rules and regulations that the District may adopt shall not conflict with the provisions of this agreement.

ARTICLE 16 SUMMER SCHOOL

- 16.1 The District shall have the right to operate a summer session annually adhering to state law and the provisions of this contract.
- 16.2 Teachers shall be selected following all provisions of fair hiring practices, appropriate credentials, and the provisions of this contract. District teachers shall have preference over any other applicants for summer school positions.
- 16.3 Teachers will be expected to work a maximum of five hours per day or equivalent; four hours of teaching and one hour of preparation/supervision.
- 16.4 Salary will be \$40.00 per hour for each assigned hour. Each full-time teacher (54 hours) will receive one (1) earned sick leave day. (Part-time teachers will earn the appropriate additional sick leave, e.g. two and one-half hour (2 1/2) assignment 1/2 day earned.)
- 16.5 Classes will be determined by May 1st from a list generated by teachers, administrators and Board approved curricular offerings. After classes are determined, district teachers shall be given preference over other applicants for these summer school sessions.
- 16.6 Summer school notification will be given to all teacher applicants before the end of the current school year.
- 16.7 Extended School Year Special Education Summer School (ESY). The parties agree that unit members who work during ESY summer school shall be paid their per diem rate proportionate to the workday. (i.e. per diem rate paid hourly.)

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED EVALUATION PROCESS CERTIFICATED UNIT MEMBERS

MISSION STATEMENT

It is a fundamental premise that all unit members desire to achieve excellence in their area of responsibility. The goal of the employee evaluation is to support, lead, and assist each person toward this attainment. In evaluating each unit member, the supervisor analyzes the employees performance as a professional educator.

GOALS

- -recognizing and monitoring effective instructional practices
- -assisting teachers in improving their teaching performance
- -promoting quality instruction to enhance student learning
- -eliminating ineffective teaching
- -assessing the competency of all instructional and non-instructional members as it reasonably relates to the fulfillment of their assigned duties

The district has established job responsibilities for each position within the bargaining unit. The criteria to be used for evaluation relate specifically to the California Standards for the Teaching Profession:

1. Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning

- 1.1 Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning
- 1.2 Connecting learning to students' prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences and interests
- 1.3 Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts
- 1.4 Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students' diverse learning needs
- 1.5 Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection
- 1.6 Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching

2. Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning

- 2.1 Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community where each student is treated fairly and respectfully
- 2.2 Creating physical or virtual learning environments that promote student learning, reflect diversity, and encourage constructive and productive interactions among students
- 2.3 Establishing and maintaining learning environments that are physically, intellectually, and emotionally safe
- 2.4 Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students
- 2.5 Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior
- 2.6 Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior to ensure a climate in which all students can learn
- 2.7 Using instructional time to optimize learning

3. <u>Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning</u>

- 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks
- 3.2 Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of content
- 3.3 Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter
- 3.4 Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter
- 3.5 Using and adapting resources, technologies and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials, to make subject matter accessible to all students
- 3.6 Addressing the needs of English learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content

4. Planning Instruction and Designed Learning Experiences for All Students

- 4.1 Using knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background, and individual development to plan
- 4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for student learning
- 4.3 Developing and sequencing long-term and short-term instructional plans to support student learning
- 4.4 Planning instruction and incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students
- 4.5 Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students

5. Assessing Students for Learning

- 5.1 Applying knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments
- 5.2 Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction
- 5.3 Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning
- 5.4 Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify instruction
- 5.5 Involving all students in self-assessment, goal setting, and monitoring progress
- 5.6 Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning
- 5.7 Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and their families

6. <u>Developing as a Professional Educator</u>

- 6.1 Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning
- 6.2 Establishing professional goals and engaging in continuous and purposeful professional growth and development
- 6.3 Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support teacher and student learning
- 6.4 Working with families to support student learning
- 6.5 Engaging local communities in support of the instructional program
- 6.6 Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students
- 6.7 Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT PRE-OBSERVATION CONFERENCE FORM CERTIFICATED UNIT MEMBERS

Teach	her	Date
	ol	Time/Period
Grade	e/Subject	
Please a	answer these questions and bring the completed form to you	ar pre-observation conference.
PRE-C	CONFERENCE QUESTIONS:	
1.	What will you be teaching in this lesson?	
2.	What do you expect your students to learn by th	e end of this lesson?
3.	What activities will you and your students be do	ing?
4.	How will you assess student understanding/stud	ent learning?
5.	Is there a specific area(s)/Content Standard(s) or	n which you would like me to focus?
6.	Please check those Teaching Standards listed on	the back, which are your focus for this lesson
7.	Additional information:	
Evaluat	ator Teacher	

Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning

- 1.1. Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning
- 1.2. Connecting learning to students' prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences, and interests
- 1.3. Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts
- 1.4. Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students' diverse learning needs
- 1.5. Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection
- 1.6. Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching

Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for Student Learning

- 2.1. Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community where each student is treated fairly and respectfully
- 2.2. Creating physical or virtual learning environment that promote student learning, reflect diversity, and encourage constructive and productive interactions among students
- 2.3. Establishing and maintaining learning environment that are physically, intellectually, and emotionally safe
- 2.4. Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students
- 2.5. Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior
- 2.6. Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior to ensure a climate in which all students can learn
- 2.7. Using instructional time to optimize learning

Understanding and Organizing Student Matter for Student Learning

- 3.1. Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks
- 3.2. Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of subject matter
- 3.3. Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter
- 3.4. Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter
- 3.5. Using and adapting resources, technologies, and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials, to make subject matter accessible to all students
- 3.6. Addressing the needs of English learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content

Planning Instruction and Designing Learning Experiences for All Students

- 4.1. Using knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background, and individual development to plan instruction
- 4.2. Establishing and articulating goals for student learning
- 4.3. Developing and sequencing long-term and shortterm instructional plans to support student learning
- 4.4. Planning instruction that incorporate appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students
- 4.5. Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students

Assessing Students for Learning

- 5.1. Applying knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments
- 5.2. Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction
- 5.3. Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning
- 5.4. Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan different, and modify instruction
- 5.5. Involving all students in self-assessment, goal setting, and monitoring progress
- 5.6. Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning
- 5.7. Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and their families

Developing as a Professional Educator

- 6.1. Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning
- 6.2. Establishing professional goals and engaging in continuous purposeful professional growth and development
- 6.3. Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support teacher and student learning
- 6.4. Working with families to support student learning
- 6.5. Engaging local communities in support of instructional program
- 6.6. Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students
- 6.7. Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT OBSERVATION REPORT

School Year: Date of Report: School Site:
School Site:
ry of the Formal Observation including questions, n conference, the employee and evaluator will discuss the gevaluator COMPETENCIES. The evaluator's nere an item is non-applicable. Additional descriptive
rning
ents for All Student Learning
r for All Student Learning
Experiences for All Students

V. Assessing Student	s for Learning		
	NOTICE		
It is understood that in signing the Observation Report, the employee acknowledges having discussed the Report with his/her supervisor in addition to receiving a copy. The employee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement with the Report. The foregoing material may be entered in the employee's personnel file 8 working days after the date of this Report. The employee has the right to enter and to have attached to this report his/her additional statement. A statement should normally be submitted within ten (10) days of the date of this Report.			
Evaluator	Date		
Receipt of a copy of the f	oregoing material and Notice is hereby ackno	owledged:	
Evaluatee	Date		
Post Conference Comme	nts, if applicable:		

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED SUMMATIVE EVALUATION REPORT

Employee:	Evaluator:
Assignment:	School Year:
Employment Status:	Date of Report:
1= Exceeds standards*	
2= Meets standards	
3= Needs improvement*	
4= Unsatisfactory*	
No data: Information is not available or does not apply to	o this position
*Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Nature require comments—attach additional page(s).	Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory"

1. Engaging and Supporting All Students in Learning

- 1.1 Using knowledge of students to engage them in learning
- 1.2 Connecting learning to students' prior knowledge, backgrounds, life experiences and interests
- 1.3 Connecting subject matter to meaningful, real-life contexts
- 1.4 Using a variety of instructional strategies, resources, and technologies to meet students' diverse learning needs
- 1.5 Promoting critical thinking through inquiry, problem solving, and reflection
- 1.6 Monitoring student learning and adjusting instruction while teaching

RATING

RATING

2. Creating and Maintaining Effective Environments for All Student Learning

- 2.1 Promoting social development and responsibility within a caring community where each student is treated fairly and respectfully
- 2.2 Creating physical or virtual learning environments that promote student learning, reflect diversity, and encourage constructive and productive interactions among students
- 2.3 Establishing and maintaining learning environments that are physically, intellectually, and emotionally safe
- 2.4 Creating a rigorous learning environment with high expectations and appropriate support for all students
- 2.5 Developing, communicating, and maintaining high standards for individual and group behavior
- 2.6 Employing classroom routines, procedures, norms, and supports for positive behavior to ensure a climate in which all students can learn
- 2.7 Using instructional time to optimize learning

RATING

3. Understanding and Organizing Subject Matter for Student Learning

- 3.1 Demonstrating knowledge of subject matter, academic content standards, and curriculum frameworks
- 3.2 Applying knowledge of student development and proficiencies to ensure student understanding of content
- 3.3 Organizing curriculum to facilitate student understanding of the subject matter
- 3.4 Utilizing instructional strategies that are appropriate to the subject matter
- 3.5 Using and adapting resources, technologies and standards-aligned instructional materials, including adopted materials, to make subject matter accessible to all students
- 3.6 Addressing the needs of English learners and students with special needs to provide equitable access to the content

RATING

4. Planning Instruction and Designed Learning Experiences for All Students

- 4.1 Using knowledge of students' academic readiness, language proficiency, cultural background, and individual development to plan
- 4.2 Establishing and articulating goals for student learning
- 4.3 Developing and sequencing long-term and short-term instructional plans to support student learning
- 4.4 Planning instruction and incorporates appropriate strategies to meet the learning needs of all students
- 4.5 Adapting instructional plans and curricular materials to meet the assessed learning needs of all students

5. Assessing Students for Learning

- 5.1 Applying knowledge of the purposes, characteristics, and uses of different types of assessments
- 5.2 Collecting and analyzing assessment data from a variety of sources to inform instruction
- 5.3 Reviewing data, both individually and with colleagues, to monitor student learning
- 5.4 Using assessment data to establish learning goals and to plan, differentiate, and modify instruction
- 5.5 Involving all students in self-assessment, goal setting, and monitoring progress
- 5.6 Using available technologies to assist in assessment, analysis, and communication of student learning
- 5.7 Using assessment information to share timely and comprehensible feedback with students and their families

RATING

6. Developing as a Professional Educator

- 6.1 Reflecting on teaching practice in support of student learning
- 6.2 Establishing professional goals and engaging in continuous and purposeful professional growth and development
- 6.3 Collaborating with colleagues and the broader professional community to support teacher and student learning
- 6.4 Working with families to support student learning
- 6.5 Engaging local communities in support of the instructional program
- 6.6 Managing professional responsibilities to maintain motivation and commitment to all students
- 6.7 Demonstrating professional responsibility, integrity, and ethical conduct

It is understood that in signing the Summative Evaluation Report, the employee acknowledges having discussed the Report with his/her supervisor in addition to receiving a copy. The employee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement with the Report. The foregoing material will be entered into the employee's personnel file eight (8) working days after the date of this Report. The employee has the right to enter and to have attached to this Report his/her additional statement. A statement should be normally be submitted within ten (10) days of the date of this Report.

Evaluator	Date
Receipt of a copy of the foregoing	g material and Notice is hereby acknowledged:
Employee	Date
NOTE: The Evaluation Document Summative Evaluation Report and	nt includes Pre-Observation Report(s), Post-Observations Report(s), l any employee attachment(s).
Comments for " <u>Exceeds Standards</u> ", " <u>N</u>	Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" - attach additional page(s) if needed.

Alternative Teacher Assessment Project

(in lieu of formal observation)

The teacher shall have completed six years of teaching in Tahoe Truckee Unified School District. The teacher shall have proven master of the Evaluative Competencies by receiving consistent rating at the "exceed standards" level. (Article 7.6.6)

The teacher and principal shall meet and agree upon the nature of the project and upon the timeline for development and completion.

The project should contribute towards the teacher's professional development.

The project will generally be completed in one year. A teacher may begin preliminary planning the year before.

The project shall culminate in:

- A product
- A presentation to a group of peer advisors agreed upon by the teacher and principal
- A summative reflection.

There will be interim project reports on or before November 30 and February 15. The project must be complete no later than one month before the last school day.

The principal shall certify that the project was completed.

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Alternative Evaluation Project: Tenured Teachers

Teacher Name:	Year:
Description of Project:	
Approval: Principal's Signature	Date:
Completion dates:	
By November 30	
By February 15	
One month before last day of school	
Approval:	
Peer Advisor's Signature	Principal's Signature

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED - COUNSELOR SUMMATIVE EVALUATION REPORT

Employee:	Evaluator:
Assignment:	School Year:
Employment Status:	Date of Report:

- 1= Exceeds standards*
- 2= Meets standards
- 3= Needs improvement*
- 4= Unsatisfactory*

No data: Information is not available or does not apply to this position

*Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s).

RATING

- 1. Engage, Advocate For, & Support All Students in Learning
 - 1.1 Ensure all students are engaged in a system of support designed for learning & academic success
 - 1.2 Advocate for educational opportunity, equity and access for all students
 - 1.3 Advocate for the learning and academic success of all students
 - 1.4 Identify student problems in their earliest stages and implement prevention & intervention strategies

RATING

- 2. Plan, Implement & Evaluate Programs to Promote Academic, Career, Personal & Social Development of All Students
 - 2.1 Demonstrate organizational skills
 - 2.2 Develop outcome-based programs
 - 2.3 Assess program outcomes & analyze data
 - 2.4 Demonstrate leadership in program development

RATING

- 3. Utilize Multiple Sources of Information to Monitor and Improve Student Behavior & Achievement
 - 3.1 Assess student characteristics and utilize the information to plan for individual student growth & achievement
 - 3.2 Interpret and use student assessment data with students and parents/guardians in developing personal, academic career plans
 - 3.3 Monitor student's personal, academic & career progress

RATING

- 4. Collaborate and Coordinate with School & Community Resources
 - 4.1 Build & maintain student support teams for student achievement
 - 4.2 Provide consultation & education for teachers and parents
 - 4.3 Develop working relationships within the school that includes school staff members, parents & community members
 - 4.4 Coordinate support from community agencies

RATING

- 5. Promote & Maintain a Safe Learning Environment for All Students
 - 5.1 Promote a positive, safe & supportive learning environment
 - 5.2 Develop & implement programs that address the personal and social risk factors of all students
 - 5.3 Develop & implement programs that reduce the incidence of school site violence
 - 5.4 Incorporate models of systemic school safety that address elements of prevention, intervention & treatment into the school system

RATING

6	Developing	as a Profe	ssional!	School	Counselor
u.	Developing	as a rivic	SSIUHAI 1	SCHOOL '	Counstion

- 6.1 Establish professional goals & pursue opportunities to improve
- 6.2 Model effective practices & continuous progress in school counseling
- 6.3 Adhere to professional codes of ethics, legal mandates & district policies

Staff development funds will be made available when funds are available.

It is understood that in signing the Summative Evaluation Report, the employee acknowledges having discussed the Report with his/her supervisor in addition to receiving a copy. The employee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement with the Report. The foregoing material will be entered into the employee's personnel file eight (8) working days after the date of this Report. The employee has the right to enter and to have attached to this Report his/her additional statement. A statement should be normally be submitted within ten (10) days of the date of this Report.

Evaluator	Date
Receipt of a copy of the foregoing	material and Notice is hereby acknowledged:
Employee	Date
NOTE: The Evaluation Documen Summative Evaluation Report and	t includes Pre-Observation Report(s), Post-Observations Report(s), any employee attachment(s).
Comments for "Exceeds Standards", "N	<u>seeds Improvement</u> ", or " <u>Unsatisfactory</u> " - attach additional page(s) if needed.

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CERTIFICATED – TEACHER LIBRARIAN SUMMATIVE EVALUATION REPORT

Employment Status: Date of Report: 1= Exceeds standards* 2= Meets standards 3= Needs improvement* 4= Unsatisfactory* No data: Information is not available or does not apply to this position *Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information RATING	Employee:	Evaluator:	
1= Exceeds standards* 2= Meets standards 3= Needs improvement* 4= Unsatisfactory* No data: Information is not available or does not apply to this position *Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information RATING	Assignment:		
2= Meets standards 3= Needs improvement* 4= Unsatisfactory* No data: Information is not available or does not apply to this position *Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information RATING 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	Employment Status:	Date of Report:	
3= Needs improvement* 4= Unsatisfactory* No data: Information is not available or does not apply to this position *Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	1= Exceeds standards*		
4= Unsatisfactory* No data: Information is not available or does not apply to this position *Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	2= Meets standards		
*Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			
*Important: All ratings marked "Exceeds Standard", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" require comments—attach additional page(s). RATING 1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			
I. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	No data: Information is not available or does not a	ipply to this position	
1. Students Access Information 1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING		rd", "Needs Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" r	equire
1.1 Recognize the need for information 1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			RATING
1.2 Formulate appropriate questions 1.3 Identify and locate a variety of resources online and in other formats by using effective strategies RATING 2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			
2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	1.2 Formulate appropriate questions	nline and in other formats by using effective strategies	
2. Students Evaluate Information 2.1 Determine the relevance of the information 2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			RATING
2.2 Assess the comprehensiveness, currency, credibility, authority and accuracy of resources. 2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	2. Students Evaluate Information		
2.3 Consider the need for additional information RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	2.1 Determine the relevance of the information		
RATING 3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	*		
3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Communicate Information 3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	2.3 Consider the need for additional information	n	
3.1 Demonstrate ethical, legal and safe use of information in print, media and online resources 3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			RATING
3.2 Draw conclusions and make informed decisions 3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	3. Students Organize, Synthesize, Create & Co.	mmunicate Information	
3.3 Use information and technology creatively to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understanding RATING 4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			
4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING			1.
4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skills into All Areas of Learning 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	3.3 Use information and technology creatively i	to answer a question, solve a problem or enrich understa	ındıng
 4.1 Read widely and use various media form information, personal interest and lifelong learning 4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING 			RATING
4.2 Seek, produce and share information 4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING	4. Students Integrate Informative Literacy Skill	ls into All Areas of Learning	
4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expressions of information RATING		formation, personal interest and lifelong learning	
RATING			
	4.3 Appreciate and respond to creative expression	ons of information	PATING
5 Managa the Daily Operations of the School Library	5 Managa the Daily Operations of the School	- Library	KATING
5. Manage the Daily Operations of the School Library PATING	5. Manage the Dany Operations of the School	Library	DATING
RATING 6. Developing as a Professional School Librarian	6 Davidoning of a Professional Cabaci Libraria		KATING
6. Developing as a Professional School Librarian			
7.1 Establish professional goals & objectives for improvement7.2 Model effective practices & continuous progress in as a school librarian			

It is understood that in signing the Summative Evaluation Report, the employee acknowledges having discussed the Report with his/her supervisor in addition to receiving a copy. The employee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement with the Report. The foregoing material will be entered into the employee's personnel file eight (8) working days after the date of this Report. The employee has the right to enter and to have attached to this Report his/her additional statement. A statement should be normally

7.3 Adhere to professional codes of ethics, legal mandates & district policies

be submitted within ten (10) days of the date of this Report.

Evaluator	Date
Receipt of a copy of the foregoing mat	terial and Notice is hereby acknowledged:
Employee	Date Date
NOTE: The Evaluation Document ind Summative Evaluation Report and any	cludes Pre-Observation Report(s), Post-Observations Report(s), y employee attachment(s).
Comments for "Exceeds Standards", "Needs	s Improvement", or "Unsatisfactory" - attach additional page(s) if needed.

TAHOE TRUCKEE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

2019-2020 TEACHERS SALARY SCHEDULE - BOARD APPROVED JUNE 21, 2019

*This salary schedule is based on a 184 day year plus 13 <u>documented hours</u>distributed throughout the Teacher Work Year (Article 4.2.5)

Extra Pay Schedule

BCLAD Not Assigned to Primary Language Program \$750 BLCAD Certificate When the Individual is Assigned to a Primary Language Program \$1,500 Special Education Credential When the Individual is Assigned to RSP/SDC/SLP \$2,000 Masters/Doctorate Degree (Masters Only \$1,000 or Masters/Doctorate \$2,000)

Annual Health & Welfare Benefit Cap Employee Only \$8,900; Employee+1 10,300; Employee+Family \$14,100 Counselors & Nurses Shall Be Placed on the Salary Schedule at the Step and Column as Prescribed by Article 13.96; Their Salary will be Compensated for Each Extra Day at Their Daily Rate

		2019 Yearly District Contribution Increase \$8,900.00		*TOTAL 11 MONTH PREMIUM	SUMMER PREMIUM	11 MONTH EMPLOYEE:		*12 MONTH EMPLOYEE PREMIUM	Current District Monthly Contribution	TOTAL COST PER MONTH	Life/AD & D-Employee Only \$50,000	Vision	Dental	Health		EMPLOYEE ONLY	FOR ALL BARGAINING UNITS	CVT HEALTH BENEFIT RATES 2019-2020
Please contact Benef	*If your hours are less t			\$ 215.36	\$ 17.95	The summer premium is		\$ 197.41	\$ 741.67	\$ 939.08	\$ 5.70	\$ 9.58	\$ 57.80	\$ 866.00	PPO Plan 3 RX B			
Please contact Benefits Department (530) 582-2511 ttusdbenefits@ttusd.org for more information.	*If your hours are less than 30 per week, your premium will be higher than shown here.			\$ 170.63	\$ 14.22	The summer premium is added to your monthly premium to pay for July 2020		\$ 156.41	\$ 741.67	\$ 898.08	\$ 5.70	\$ 9.58	\$ 57.80	\$ 825.00	PPO Plan 5 (New Plan)			
-2511 ttusdbenefits@tt	mium will be higher than			\$ 109.54	\$ 9.13 \$	emium to pay for July 20		\$ 100.41	\$ 741.67	\$ 842.08	\$ 5.70	\$ 9.58	\$ 57.80	\$ 769.00	PPO Plan 6 RX B			
usd.org for more info	shown here.			\$ 32.08	\$ 2.67)20		\$ 29.41	\$ 741.67	\$ 771.08	\$ 5.70	\$ 9.58	\$ 57.80	\$ 698.00	PPO Plan 8 RXB			
ormation.				-	-			-	\$ 699.08 \$	\$ 699.08	\$ 5.70	\$ 9.58	\$ 57.80	\$ 626.00	PPO Plan 9B			
				•	•			•	\$ 601.08	\$ 601.08	\$ 5.70	\$ 9.58	\$ 57.80	\$ 528.00	HDHP PLAN 1 (New Plan)			
				5 9	69			5 9	3 \$ 522.08	3 \$ 522.08	5.70	3 \$ 9.58	57.80	\$ 449.00	HDHP PLAN 3			

		19 Yearly District Contribution Increase \$10,300.00		*TOTAL 11 MONTH PREMIIUM	SUMMER PREMIUM	11 MONTH EMPLOYEE:		*12 MONTH EMPLOYEE PREMIUM	Current District Monthly Contribution	TOTAL COST PER MONTH	Life-Employee Only \$50,000	Vision	Dental	Health		EMPLOYEE + ONE	FOR ALL BARGAINING UNITS	CVT HEALTH BENEFIT RATES 2019-2020
Please contact Bo	*If your hours are I			\$ 1,094.47 \$	\$ 91.21	The summer premi		\$ 1,003.26	\$ 858.33 \$	\$ 1,861.59	\$ 5.70	\$ 17.79	\$ 106.10	\$ 1,732.00	PPO Plan 3 RX B			
Please contact Benefits Department (530) 582-2511 ttusdbenefits@ttusd.org for more information.	*If your hours are less than 30 per week, your premium will be higher than shown here.			\$ 1,005.01	\$ 83.75 \$	11 MONTH EMPLOYEE: The summer premium is added to your monthly premium to pay for July 2020		\$ 921.26	\$ 858.33	\$ 1,779.59	\$ 5.70	\$ 17.79	\$ 106.10	\$ 1,650.00	PPO Plan 5 (New Plan)			
82-2511 ttusdbenef	premium will be high			\$ 882.83	\$ 73.57	premium to pay for		\$ 809.26	\$ 858.33	\$ 1,667.59	\$ 5.70	\$ 17.79	\$ 106.10	\$ 1,538.00	PPO Plan 6 RX B			
its@ttusd.org for m	er than shown here.			\$ 727.92	\$ 60.66	July 2020		\$ 667.26	\$ 858.33	\$ 1,525.59	\$ 5.70	\$ 17.79	\$ 106.10	\$ 1,396.00	PPO Plan 8 RX B			
ore information.				\$ 570.83	\$ 47.57			\$ 523.26	\$ 858.33	\$ 1,381.59	\$ 5.70	\$ 17.79	\$ 106.10	\$ 1,252.00	PPO Plan 9 RX B			
				\$ 357.01	\$ 29.75			\$ 327.26	\$ 858.33	\$ 1,185.59	\$ 5.70	\$	\$ 106.10	\$ 1,056.00	HDHP PLAN 1 (New Plan)			
				\$ 184.65	\$ 15.39			\$ 169.26	\$ 858.33	\$ 1,027.59	\$ 5.70	\$ 17.79	\$ 106.10	\$ 898.00	HDHP PLAN 3			

		2019 District Contribution Increase \$14,100.00		*TOTAL 11 MONTH PREMIUM \$	SUMMER PREMIUM \$	11 MONTH EMPLOYEE: The summer premium is added to your monthly premium to pay for July 2020		*12 MONTH EMPLOYEE PREMIUM \$	Current Employer Monthly Contribution \$	TOTAL COST PER MONTH \$	Life AD & D-Employee Only \$50,000 \$	Vision \$	Dental	Health		EMPLOYEE + FAMILY	FOR ALL BARGAINING UNITS	CVT HEALTH BENEFIT RATES 2019-2020
Please contact Bene	*If your hours are less			1,468.99	\$ 122.42	The summer premium		\$ 1,346.57	1,175.00	2,521.57	\$ 5.70	\$ 27.40	\$ 159.47	\$ 2,329.00	PPO Plan 3 RX B			
Please contact Benefits Department (530) 582-2511 ttusdbenefits@ttusd.org for more information.	*If your hours are less than 30 per week, your premium will be higher than shown here.			\$ 1,348.99	\$ 112.42	is added to your monthly		\$ 1,236.57	\$ 1,175.00	\$ 2,411.57	\$ 5.70	\$ 27.40	\$ 159.47	\$ 2,219.00	PPO Plan 5 (New Plan)			
2-2511 ttusdbenefit	remium will be higher			\$ 1,184.26	\$ 98.69	premium to pay for Ju		\$ 1,085.57	\$ 1,175.00	\$ 2,260.57	\$ 5.70	\$ 27.40	\$ 159.47	\$ 2,068.00	PPO Plan 6 RX B			
s@ttusd.org for mo	than shown here.			\$ 975.89	\$ 81.32	ıly 2020		\$ 894.57	\$ 1,175.00	\$ 2,069.57	\$ 5.70	\$ 27.40	\$ 159.47	\$ 1,877.00	PPO Plan 8 RX B			
re information.				\$ 765.35	\$ 63.78			\$ 701.57	\$ 1,175.00	\$ 1,876.57	\$	\$ 27.40	\$	\$ 1,684.00	PPO Plan 9 RX B			
				\$ 477.35	\$ 39.78			\$ 437.57	\$ 1,175.00	\$ 1,612.57	€	\$ 27.40	\$ 159.47	\$ 1,420.00	HDHP PLAN 1 (New Plan)			
				.35 \$ 244.99	.78 \$ 20.42			.57 \$ 224.57	.00 \$ 1,175.00	.57 \$ 1,399.57	5.70 \$ 5.70	.40 \$ 27.40	.47 \$ 159.47	.00 \$ 1,207.00	in) HDHP PLAN 3			





Who Do I Call?

Call your district office when...

- You have questions regarding your payroll deduction
- · You want to know when your coverage will end
- You need to change your address and /or phone number
- You want to add a new family member, i.e.; spouse, domestic partner, newborn, or other eligible dependent
- You need to delete a family member, i.e.; due to divorce, or an overage dependent getting married, or no longer eligible, or death in the family

(Your district office will forward the paperwork to CVT, when applicable)

Call California's Valued Trust when...

- · You have eligibility questions about yourself or your dependents
- You receive a letter from California's Valued Trust and have questions
- You have retiree health benefit coverage questions
- You have questions about COBRA coverage, (continuing benefit coverage through CVT, after terminating employment)
- You need carrier phone numbers, not listed on your insurance card(s)

(CVT may need to refer you to another office when appropriate)

Call the carrier when...

- Prior authorization is required
- You have coordination of benefits questions
- You have questions on an explanation of benefits (EOB)
- You want to know how much deductible you have, or have met
- You want to know how much towards your maximum you have used
- You are billed or balance billed by a provider of service
- You need the status of a claim

(i.e.; Anthem Blue Cross, Delta Dental, VSP, or CVS Caremark)





Helpful Phone Numbers and Website Addresses for Coverages

CVT PPO Plan	Information	देशमें प्रवादा दीडकार्टर क्वानिता
California's Valued Trust (CVT)	(800) 288-9870	www.cvtrust.org
Anthem Blue Cross Dedicated CVT Claims Unit	(800) 234-4333	www.anthem.com/ca/cvt
Anthem Blue Cross BlueCard Program (For Anthem Blue Cross members residing/traveling outside California)	(800) 810-2583	www.bluecares.com
Anthem Blue Cross Pre-Admission	(800) 274-7767	
CVS Caremark Pharmacy (Active and Under 65 Retirees)	(888) 354-6390	www.caremark.com
CVS Caremark / SilverScript Pharmacy (Over 65 Retirees)	(888) 620-1756	www.silverscript.com
Alere (Chronic condition, health management program)	(877) 864-1327	www.alere.com
Accordant (Rare condition, health management program)	(800) 948-2497	www.accordant.com
MDLIVE	(888) 632-2738	www.mdlive.com/cvt
Beacon Employee Assistance Program (EAP)	(877) 397-1032	www.achievesolutions.net/cvt
Additional Coverage Information (if b	argained to be adm	inistered by CVT)
Delta Dental of California	(866) 499-3001	www.deltadentalins.com
MetLife Insurance	(800) 638-6420	
Vision Service Plan (VSP)	(800) 877-7195	www.vsp.com

It is always a good practice to obtain the name of the person you spoke with. If your concern was not handled to your satisfaction, CVT can follow-up and assist you with your concern.

Approved 3-20-19

2019-2020 School Calendar

						<u> </u>	7-2020 School Calen	du								
			JULY	′			<u>HOLIDAYS</u>			JA	ANUA	RY				
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Fourth of July 07/04/19	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S		
	1	2	3	4	5	6	Labor Day 09/02/19	9			1	2	3	4		
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	Veteran's Day Observed 11/11/19	5	6	7	8	9	10	11		
14	15	16	17	18	19	20	Thanksgiving Day 11/28/19	12	13	14	15	16	17	18		
21	22	23	24	25	26	27	Christmas Day 12/25/19	19	20	21	22	23	24	25		
28	29	30	31			0	New Years Day 01/01/20	26	27	28	29	30	31	19		
		A	UGUS	ST			Martin Luther King Day 01/20/20			FE	BRUA	RY				
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Presidents Day 02/17/20	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S		
				1	2	3	Lincoln's Birthday (Observed) 02/18/20							1		
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Memorial Day 05/25/20	2	3	4	5	6	7	8		
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	LOCAL HOLIDAYS	9	10	11	12	13	14	15		
18	19	20	21	22	23	24		16	17	18	19	20	21	22		
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	Thanksgiving Break: November 27-29	23	24	25	26	27	28	29		
						0	Winter Break: December 23 - January 3							15		
		SEF	PTEM	BER			Ski-Skate Week: February 17-21			٨	AARC	Н				
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Spring Break : April 13-17	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S		
							•									
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Approved by the board on March 20, 2019	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		8	9	10	11	12	13	14		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		15	16	17	18	19	20	21		
22	23	24	25	26	27	28		22	23	24	25	26	27	28		
29	30					20	New Educator's Academy - August 27	29	30	31				22		
OCTOBER							TEACHER CONTRACT DAYS (NO SCHOOL)				APRIL					
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	August 28-30, October 7	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S		
		1	2	3	4	5	Summer Programs start/end dates				1	2	3	4		
6	7	8	9	10	11	12	ALL SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	5	6	7	8	9	10	11		
13	14	15	16	17	18	19	ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	12	13	14	15	16	17	18		
20	21	22	23	24	25	26	MIDDLE SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	19	20	21	22	23	24	25		
27	28	29	30	31		22	MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	26	27	28	29	30		17		
		NC	VEME	BER			HIGH SCHOOL FINALS: JANUARY 23-24 AND LAST 2									
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	DAYS OF SCHOOL	S	F	S						
					1	2							1	2		
3	4	5	6	7	8	9		3	4	5	6	7	8	9		
10	11	12	13	14	15	16		10	11	12	13	14	15	16		
17	18	19	20	21	22	23		17	18	19	20	21	22	23		
29	25	26	27	28	29	30	FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL September 3, 2019	24	25	26	27	28	29	30		
						17	LAST DAY OF SCHOOL June 24, 2020	31						20		
		DE	CEME	BER							JUNE					
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	The last day of school is June 24, which has	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S		
3	W		1 **		<u> </u>	3	Five Snow Days	3	M 1	2	3	4	5	6		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	built in. Snow days not used will be deducted.	7	8	9	10	11	12	13		
8	9	10	11	12	13	14	Additional snow days will be added as	14	15	16	17	18	19	20		
15	16	17	18	19	20	21	necessary. Schedule all summer activities	21	22	23	24	25	26	27		
<u> </u>	22 23 24 25 26 27 28						after June 24.	28	29	30	Ζ4	23	20	<i>L1</i>		
-	29 30 31 11															
\vdash			ab D		205	74			la e : :	-ا 4 برص	ro = -			13		
Αl	August through December 74						TOTAL MUMBER OF STATE OF STATE	<u> </u>	Janua	ary th	rough	June	:	106		
	<u> </u>						TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENT DAYS									
							180									

Approved 3-20-19

2020-2021 School Calendar

			ши	,			UNIDAYS		•		NILLA	DV -		
JULY					HOLIDAYS	JANUARY								
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Fourth of July (Observed) 07/03/20	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
-		-	1	9	3	4	Labor Day 09/07/20			-		-	1	2
5 12	13	7 14	8 15	16	10	11	Veteran's Day Observed 11/11/20		11	5 12	6 13	7 14	8 15	9 16
19	20	21	22	23	24	18 25	Thanksgiving Day 11/26/20 Christmas Day 12/25/20		18	19	20	21	22	23
26	27	28	29	30	31	0	New Years Day 01/01/2021		25	26	27	28	29	30
20	ZI				31	U			23	20	27	20	29	
			UGU!				Martin Luther King Day 01/18/21	FEBRUARY			19			
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Presidents Day 02/15/21							
_	_			1 .	T _	1	Lincoln's Birthday (Observed) 02/16/21	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	Memorial Day 05/31/21		1	2	3	4	5	6
9	10	11	12	13	14	15	LOCAL HOLIDAYS	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20	21	22		14	15	16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	26	27	28	29	Thanksgiving Break: November 25-27	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
30	30 31 0					0	Winter Break: December 21 - January 1	r 21 - January 1 28					15	
SEPTEMBER					Ski-Skate Week: February 15-19		MARCH							
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Spring Break: April 12-16	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
		1	2	3	4	5			1	2	3	4	5	6
6	7	8	9	10	11	12		7	8	9	10	11	12	13
13	14	15	16	17	18	19	Approved by the Board March 20, 2019	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
20	21	22	23	24	25	26		21	22	23	24	25	26	27
27	28	29	30			21		28	29	30	31			23
	OCTOBER						New Educator's Academy - August 26	APRIL						
S M T W T F S				Т	F	S	TEACHER CONTRACT DAYS (NO SCHOOL)	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
				1	2	3	August 27-28, 31, October 5					1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Summer Programs start/end dates	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	ALL SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY		19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	MIDDLE SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	25	26	27	28	29	30	
	21						MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY					17		
NOVEMBER							HIGH SCHOOL FINALS, IANIHADV 24 22 AND LAST 2	MAY						
S			S	HIGH SCHOOL FINALS: JANUARY 21-22 AND LAST 2 DAYS OF SCHOOL	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S			
1	2	6	4	5	6	7								1
8	9	10	11	12	13	14		2	3	4	5	6	7	8
15	16	17	18	19	20	21			10	11	12	13	14	15
22	23	24	25	26	27	28			17	18	19	20	21	22
29	30						FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL September 1, 2020	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
						17	LAST DAY OF SCHOOL June 24, 2021	30	31					20
DECEMBER								JUNE						
					F		The last day of echael in lune 24 which has						Е	C
S	М	T	W	T	F	S	The last day of school is June 24, which has	S	М	T	W	T	F	S
	-	1	2	3	4	5	Five Snow Days		-	1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12	built in. Snow days not used will be deducted. Additional snow days will be added as necessary. Schedule all summer activities after June 24.		7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19			14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	22	23	24	25	26			21	22	23	24	25	26
27														
	14											13		
Αu	ıgust	throu	gh De	ecemb	oer	73			Janua	ary th	rough	June	<u> </u>	107
							TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENT DAYS							
							180							

Approved 3-20-19

2021-2022 School Calendar

	ZOZ I-ZOZZ SCHOOL Cateridal													
JULY							<u>HOLIDAYS</u>	JANUARY						
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Fourth of July (Observed) 07/03/21	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
				1	2	3	Labor Day 09/06/21			ı	ı	ı	ı	1
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Veteran's Day (Observed) 11/11/21	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
11	12	13	14	15	16	17	Thanksgiving Day 11/25/21	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
18	19	20	21	22	23	24	Christmas Day 12/25/21	16	17	18	19	20	21	22
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	New Years Day 01/01/2022	23	24	25	26	27	28	29
						0	Martin Luther King Day 01/17/22	30	31					20
AUGUST							Presidents Day 02/21/22	FEBRUARY						
S	М	I	W	Т	F	S	Lincoln's Birthday (Observed) 02/22/22	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	Memorial Day 05/30/22			1	2	3	4	5
8	9	10	11	12	13	14	<u>LOCAL HOLIDAYS</u>	6	7	8	9	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19	20	21		13	14	15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	26	27	28	Thanksgiving Break: November 24-26	20	21	22	23	24	25	26
29	29 30 31			-	1	Winter Break: December 21 - December 31	27	27 28					15	
	SEPTEMBER						Ski-Skate Week: February 21-25		MARCH					
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	Spring Break - April 11-15	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
			1	2	3	4				1	2	3	4	5
5	6	7	8	9	10	11		6	7	8	9	10	11	12
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	Approved by the Board March 20, 2019	13	14	15	16	17	18	19
19	20	21	22	23	24	25		20	21	22	23	24	25	26
26	26 27 28 29 30		21			28	29	30	31		23			
	OCTOBER										APRIL			
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	New Educator's Academy - August 25	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
					1	2	TEACHER CONTRACT DAYS (NO SCHOOL)						1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9	August 26-27, 30, October 4	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16	Summer Programs start/end dates	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23	ALL SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30	ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	24	25	26	27	28	29	30
31	31					20	MIDDLE SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY							16
NOVEMBER							MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOLS MINIMUM DAY	MAY						
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	HIGH SCHOOL FINALS: JANUARY 20-21 AND LAST 2	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
	1	2	3	4	5	6	DAYS OF SCHOOL	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
7	8	9	10	11	12	13			9	10	11	12	13	14
14	15	16	17	18	19	20		15	16	17	18	19	20	21
21	22	23	24	25	26	27		22	23	24	25	26	27	28
28	29	30						29	30	31				
18						18	FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL August 31					21		
DECEMBER							LAST DAY OF SCHOOL JUNE 23	JUNE						
S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S		S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
			1	2	3	4	The last day of school is June 23, which has				1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11	Five Snow Days	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18	built in. Snow days not used will be deducted.	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	Additional snow days will be added as	19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27			26	27	28	29	30						
						13	after June 23.				12			
August through December						73		January through June				107		
														السسم

TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENT DAYS 180